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0.00% 

0.00% 
0.00% 

23 

plicable
ection 

2(87) 

2(87) 

2(6) 

2(87) 

2(6) 

2(87) 

quity) 

%
Change 
during 

the
year 

0 
0 

0 

0 
0 

0 

0 
0
 

0 

0 

0 
0 
0 
0

0

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 
0 
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Categ
Shareh

Capital Fu

i) Others (s

Sub-total 

2. Non-Ins
a) Bodies C

i) Indian 

ii) Oversea

b) Individu
i) Individua
Shareholde
holding no
share capi
Rs. 1 Lakh
ii) Individua
Shareholde
holding 
nominal sh
capital in 
excess of R
Lakh 
c) Others (
i. Non Res
Individual 
Sub-total 
Total Pub
Sharehold
(B)=(B)(1)
C. Shares 
Custodian 
ADR 
Grand Tot
(A+B+C) 

(ii)  Sh

S.
No.

Sh

1 

(iii) Ch

S.
No.

1 A
th

 

D
P
y
in
/t

2 A

 

ory of 
holders D

nds 

specify) 

(B)(1) 

stitutions 
Corporate 

15
as 4
als  

al 
ers 
minal 
tal up to 

h 
al 
ers 

hare 

Rs. 1 

(specify) 
sident 

(B)(2) 20
lic 
ding 
+(B)(2) 

20

held by 
for GDR& 

tal 20

hareholding

hareholder’s 
Name 

NIL 

hange in Pr

At the beginnin
he year 

Date wise Inc
Promoters Sh
year specifyi
ncrease / de
transfer / bonu

At the End of t

No. of S
begin

Demat Phys

0 0

0 0

536560 0

488440 0
 

0 0

0 0

0 0

025000 0

025000 0

0 0

025000 0

g of Promote
Shareho

No. of 
Shares 

0 

omoters’ Sh

ng of 

crease / Dec
hareholding d
ng the rea
crease (e.g. 
us/ sweat equ
he year 

Shares held at 
ning of the yea

sical Total

0 0 

0 0 

0 153656

0 488440

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 202500

0 202500

0 0 

0 202500

ers 
olding at the 

of the year

% of 
total

Shares 
of the 

Company 

0.00% 

hareholding

crease in 
uring the 
sons for 
allotment 

ity etc.,) 

the 
ar

% of 
Total 

Shares 

0.00% 

0.00% 

60 75.88 

0 24.12 

0.00% 

0.00% 

0.00% 

00 100% 

00 100% 

0.00% 

00 100% 

beginning
r

%of Shares
Pledged / 

encumbered
to total 
shares 

0.00% 

g (please spe
Shareholdi

beginning o

No. of 
shares 

%
sh

C

0 

0 

0 

No. of Sh

Demat Ph

0 

0

1536560 

488440 

0 

0 

0 

2025000 

2025000 

0 

2025000 

Shareh

d No. of 
Shares 

0 

ecify, if ther
ng at the 

of the year
% of total

hares of the 
Company 

0.00% 

0.00% 

0.00% 

hares held at th
the year 

hysical Tot

0 0 

0 0 

0 1536

0 4884

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 2025

0 2025

0 0 

0 2025

holding at the
Year 

% of 
total

Shares 
of the 

Company 

0.00% 

re is no cha
Cumulative

No. of sha

0 

0 

0 

he end of

tal 
% of 
Total 

Shares 

0.00% 

0.00% 

560 75.88 

440 24.12 

0.00% 

0.00% 

0.00% 

000 100% 

000 100% 

0.00% 

000 100% 

e end of the 

%of Shares
Pledged / 

encumbered
to total 
shares 

0.00% 

nge) 
e Shareholdin

the year 

ares
%

shar
Co

0

0

0

%
Change 
during 

the
year 

0 

0

NIL 

NIL 

0 

0 

0 

NIL 

NIL 

0 

NIL 

%
change

in 
share 

holding
during 

the
year 

s

d

0.00% 

ng during 

of total
res of the 
ompany 

0.00% 

0.00% 

0.00% 

 



S
N
.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

 

 

(iv)  S
H

S.
o
.

For each
Top

Shareh

1 The Tata P
Company L

2 Omega TC
Holdings P

3 Tata Chem
Limited 

4 Tata Sons 

5 Voltas Lim

6 Tata Indus
Limited 

7 Tata Capita

 
(v) Shar
 

S.
No.

1 A

 

D
P
s
d
s

3 A
 
V. INDEB

Indebted

Indebted
i) Principa
ii) Interes
iii) Interes
Total (I +
Change i
Addition
Reduction
Net Chan
Indebted
i) Principa
ii) Interes
iii) Interes
Total (i+i

Shareholdin
Holders of G

h of the 
 10 
olders 

S

N
sh

Power 
Limited 9,6

C 
PTE LTD 4,8

micals 1,9

Limited  1,3

ited  1,3

stries 6

al Limited 44

reholding of

For E

At the beginnin
Date wise 
Promoters Sh
specifying the
decrease (e.g
sweat equity e
At the end of th

BTEDNESS 

dness of the

Particul

dness at the b
al Amount 
t due but not p

st accrued but
+ ii + iii) 
in Indebtedne

n 
nge 
dness at the e
al Amount 
t due but not p

st accrued but
i+iii) 

ng Pattern 
GDR and AD

hareholding at
beginning of t

year 

No. of 
hares 

%
Tot

share
th

Comp

67,500 47.

88,440 24.

93,500 9.5

35,000 6.6

35,000 6.6

0,750 3.0

4,810 2.2

f Directors a

ach of the Di
and KMP 

ng ofthe year 
Increase / 

hareholding d
e reasons 
. allotment /tr

etc.,) 
he year 

e Company 

ars 

beginning of t

paid 
t not due 

ess during th

end of the fina

paid 
t not due 

of top ten 
DR)

t the 
he 

C
Share

of
tal 
es of 

he
pany 

No. o
share

.78 9,67,50

.12 4,88,44

56 1,93,50

67 1,35,00

67 1,35,00

00 60,750

20 44,810

and Key Man

rectors

Decrease 
during the ye
for increase 
ransfer / bonu

including in

Secu
exclud

the financial 

he financial ye

ancial year 

Shareholde

Cumulative 
eholding during

the year 

f
s

% of Tota
shares o

the
Company

00 47.78 

40 24.12 

00 9.56 

00 6.67 

00 6.67 

0 3.00 

0 2.20 

nagerial Per

Sha
begin

No. of
shares

0 
in 

ear 
/ 

us/ 
0 

0 

nterest outs

ured Loans 
ding deposits
year 

39,865.17
78.66
50.41

39,994.24
ear 

24,049.69
28,985.62
(4,935.93)

34,911.40

146.91
35,058.31

ers (other t

g

Date
Decreas
during th

reaso

al
of

y
Date N

s

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

rsonnel (KM

reholding at 
nning of the y

f
s

% of t
shares 

Comp
0.00

0.00

0.00

standing/acc

s
Unsecure

Loans

7 17,732.7
6 
1 
4 17,732.7

9 15,000.0
2 17,732.7
) (2732.71

0 15,000.0
- 
1 
1 15,000.0

han Directo

wise Increase 
se in Sharehold
he Year specify

ons for increase
decrease 

No. of  
hares 

Incre
(Decr

)

Nil N

Nil N

Nil N

Nil N

Nil N

Nil N

Nil N

MP)

the
year

Cu

total
of the 

pany 
N
sh

0% 

0% 

0% 

crued but no

ed Deposits

71 -
- -
- -

71 -

00 -
71 -
1) -

00 -
- -
- -

00

 

ors, Promot

/
ding  
ying 
e/

At the
(

ease/
rease
)

No. o
share

Nil 9,67,5

Nil 4,88,4

Nil 1,93,5

Nil 1,35,0

Nil 1,35,0

Nil 60,75

Nil 44,81

umulative Sh
during the

o. of 
hares 

%
sh

C
0 

0 

0 

ot due for pa
(Amoun

s Tot
Indebte

-
- 
- 
-

- 
- 4
- (

- 4
- 
- 

25 

ters and 

e end of the ye
(or the date 

of
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% of Tot
shares o

the
Compan

500 47.78

440 24.12

500 9.56

000 6.67

000 6.67

50 3.00

10 2.20

areholding 
e year
% of total
ares of the 
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0.00% 

0.00% 
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nt in Lakh) 
tal
edness 

57,597.88
78.66 
50.41 

57,726.95 

39,049.69 
46,718.33 
(7,668.64)

49,911.40 
- 

146.91 
50,058.31
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VI. REM

A. Rem

S.
No.
1. G

(
(
(

2. S
3. S
4. C

-
5. O

B. Remu

Sr.
No.

Particu
Remun

1

Sitting 
attendi
Board/
commi
meetin
and 
Indepe
Directo
meetin
Comm

 To
Overall Ceil

per the A

Note 

Nomina

Corpora

 

UNERATION

muneration t

Particulars

Gross salary 
(a) Salary as p
(b) Value of pe
(c) Profits in lie
Stock Option 
Sweat Equity 
Commission- 
- others, speci
Others, please

uneration to

ulars of 
neration Ms N

Sa

fee for 
ing 
/ 
ttee 

ngs  

endent 
ors 
ng 

12,4

ission 25,0
otal  37,4
ing as 

Act
for s
for C

Type of 

Board M

Audit Comm

ation and Rem

Project Revie

ate Social Res

N OF DIREC

to Managing

s of Remuner

per provisions
erquisites u/s1
eu of salaryun

as a % of prof
ify 
eSpecify (Roy

o other Direc

Neera 
aggi 

Mr 
Kuma

INDEPENDEN
DIRECTORS

40,000 12,0

00,000 25,0
40,000 37,0
itting fee Rs 1

Commission (1

S

Meeting 

Meeting 

ittee Meeting 

muneration Co

ew Committee

sponsibility Co

CTORS AND

g Director, W

ration to Man
Desh

scontained in s
17(2) Income-
nder section 1

fit 

yalty) 

ctors

Samir 
ar Barua Ram

NT
S

00,000 1

00,000 3
00,000 4
,00,000/- per 
% of net profi

Sitting Fee De

mmittee 

e 

ommittee 

D KEY MANA

Whole-time 

aging Directo
hpande

section 17(1) o
-tax Act, 1961
7(3) Income T

Nam

Mr S 
makrishnan 

NON-IN

3,60,000 

0,00,000 2
3,60,000 2
meeting 
ts) = Rs 1,97,

etails for the 

AGERIAL PE

Directors an

or - Mr Vinaya

ofthe Income-

TaxAct, 1961

Ceiling

e of Directors 

Mr P N 
Dhume P

NDEPENDENT

5,60,000 

20,00,000 
25,60,000 

54,000/- 

FY 2016-17

Amo

40,000

40,000

20,000

20,000

20,000

ERSONNEL 

nd/or Manag

ak Kashinath

tax Act, 1961 

To
g as per the A

Mr 
arashuram 

G Date 

NON EXECUTI

- - 

- - 
-- 

ount in Rs.

0 per meeting 

0 per meeting 

0 per meeting 

0 per meeting 

0 per meeting 

ger   
(Amou

h
TotalA

2,

3,

otal     5,
Act 9,

(Amou

Mr Padmanabh 
Sinha 

IVE DIRECTOR

5,80,000 

20,00,000 
25,80,000 

unt in Rs.) 

Amount

06,23,856 
12,21,600 

- 
- 
- 

15,00,000 
- - 

- 
33,45,456 
87,70,000

unt in Rs) 

Mr Rajit 
Desai

RS

- - 

- - 
- - 

 



 

 

C. R
M

Sr.
No. 
1. Gro

a.  

b.  
c.  

2 Sto
3 Sw

4
Com
- 
- 

5 Oth
 Tot

 
VII. PEN

Typ

A. Comp
Penalty  
Punishme
Compoun
B. Direct
Penalty  
Punishme
Compoun
C. Other 
Penalty  
Punishme
Compoun

  

REMUNERA
MD/MANAG

P

oss Salary 
Salary as pe
the Income-ta
Value of perq
Profits in lieu 
Act, 1961 

ock Option  
weat Equity 

mmission  
as a % of pr
others, spec

her, please sp
tal (A) 

NALTIES / PU

pe Se
Com

any 

ent 
nding  
ors

ent 
nding  
Officers in D

ent 
nding  

    

ATION TO
GER/WTD

Particulars of R

er provisions c
ax Act, 1961 
uisites u/s 17(
of salary und

rofit 
cify 
ecify  

UNISHMENT

ection of the 
mpanies Act 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

Default 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

    

O KEY 

Remuneration

contained in s

(2) Income-tax
er section 17(

T/ COMPOU

Brief
Descriptio

-
-
-

-
-
-

-
-
-

  

MANAGER

section 17(1) 

x Act, 1961 
(3)  Income tax

NDING OF O

on

Det
/P

Com

   

RIAL PE

Compan

of 

x 

OFFENCES
tails of Penalt
Punishment / 
mpounding fe

imposed 

-
-
-

-
-
-

-
-
-

   

RSONNEL 

Key Manager
ny Secretary 

52,23,678 

54,172 

- 

- 
- 

- 

- 
52,77,850 

ty

ees

Au

N
C

Sowm

    

 

OTHER 

(Amou
rial Personnel 

Chief Financ

1,

1,

uthority 
[RD / 

NCLT / 
COURT]

if

-
-
-

-
-
-

-
-
-

myan Ramak
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THAN

unt in Rs.) 

cial Officer 

09,78,448 

5,57,490 

- 

- 
- 

- 

- 
15,35,938

Appeal 
made, 

any (give 
Details)

-
-
-

-
-
-

-
-
-

krishnan  

Chairman 
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Details 
Section 
 
Corpor

Name an

To Corpora
Powai, Mu
To HDFC 
Tata-Aldes
To Corpora
JV Powai, 

To Deutsc

To IndusIn
To Kotak 
Pune Limit

Loans a

ICDs   
Loans

Name an

Artson En

Acquis

Name

Virendra
Artson E
TPL-TQA
Mauritius
TPL-TQA
4000 
TQ Serv
Ujjwal Pu
TQ Cert 
Tata Dilw
Industria
TEIL Pro
Al-Tawle
*As the co
 

  

 

of Loans, G
186 of the 

ate Guaran

nd address of 
whom it

ation Bank on b
mbai 
Bank, Lower P

sa (JV) 
ation Bank, Pow
Mumbai 

he Bank AG, Ch

nd Bank, on beh
Mahindra Bank

ted 

and Inter-C

  -  

nd address of
to whom 

ngineering Lim

ition of sha

e and addres

a Garments M
Engineering L
A Quality Se
s 
A Quality Se

vices Europe 
une Limited 
Services Pri

worth Secord
al Quality Ser
ojects Limited
eed for Energ
mpanies are un

    

Guarantees,
Companies

ntees 

the person or 
t is made or giv

behalf of Artson

Parel (West), M

wai, Mumbai on

hennai on beha

half of Artson En
k Ltd, Mumbai

Corporate D

f the person o
it is made or 

mited, Powai, M

ares by the

ss of the pe
been acqui

Manufacturer
Limited, Pow
rvices (Maur

rvices (Sout

GmbH, Goe
(Formerly kn
ivate Limited
d Meagher &
rvices LLC, O
d,  Engineers
gy & Power C
nder liquidation, 

    

, Security or
s Act 2013 a

body corporat
ven  

 Engineering Li

Mumbai on beh

n behalf of  GYT

alf of Tata-Aldes

ngineering Ltd 
 on behalf of 

Deposits (IC

NIL

or body corpo
given  

Mumbai  

e Company

erson or bod
ired (Listed/
rs Private Lim

wai, Mumbai 
ritius) Pty. Lt

h Africa) (Pro

ethestraße 7,
nown as Tata
d, Prendergh
& Associates,
Oman 
s India Bhaw
Company, Al
the amount to t

  

r Investmen
are as prov

e to Amo

mited, 30,00

half of 150,00

T-TPL 25,00

sa (JV) 325,00

250,0
Ujjwal 94,50

CDs) 

orate Amo
R

40,30

y - Investm

dy corporate
/ Unlisted en
mited, Shah 

td., IFS Cour

oprietary) Ltd

, D-40237 Dü
a Projects Inf
ast Road, Se
 Bombay Ho

wan, New De
l-Malaz, Riya
the extent of inv

   

nts made by
ided below

ount in 
Rs

0,00,000 Ena

0,00,000 Ena
WC

0,00,000 Ena
cap

0,00,000 Ena
WC

00,00,00 Ena

0,00,000 Tow

ount in 
Rs

0,00,000 

ent in Equ

e whose sec
ntities) 
House Worli

rt, Cyber-city

d., Mazars H

üsseldorf, Ge
frastructure L
ecunderabad
ouse, Mumba

elhi * 
adh 1142, Sa
vestment is prov

   

y Company 

P

abling AEL to av

abling Tata-Alde
CDL 
abling GYT-TPL
ital 

abling Tata-Alde
CDL 
abling AEL to av

wards Term Loa

P

Work

ity Shares 

curities have

, Mumbai 

, Ebene, 

House, Durba

ermany 
Limited) 
d - 500 003  
ai 

audi Arabia* 
vided for in the b

Sowm

    

ANNEX

pursuant to

Purpose 

vail financial ass

esa JV to avail 

L JV – to ava

esa JV to avail 

vail financial ass

an facility 

Purpose 

king Capital 

e
Amou

2,7
1

an 

9
4,5
1,0

3,0
5,5

7
books of accoun

myan Ramak
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 DIN: 0
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o 

sistance 

overdraft / 

ail working 

overdraft / 

sistance 

unt in Rs

1,20,000
76,90,000

1,36,521

9,33,549

99,82,920
54,99,940
09,99,947
1,80,000

03,73,356
50,00,000
75,60,000
nt. 
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Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
Tata Projects Limited

3.7 Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefits

Other long term employee benefits

3.8 Earnings Per Share 

3.10 Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax
3.10.1 Current tax

3.10.2 Deferred tax

Provision for pension and medical benefits payable to retired Managing Directors is made on the basis of an actuarial valuation as at the Balance Sheet date

The company's contribution to provident fund and superannuation fund, considered as defined contribution plans are charged as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss
based on the amount of contribution required to be made and when services are rendered by the employees.

Defined benefit plans
For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the
end of each annual reporting period. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan
assets (excluding net interest), is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.
Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised
in profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset.
Defined benefit costs are categorized as follows:
(i) service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and settlements);
(ii) net interest expense or income; and 
(iii) remeasurement

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item ‘Employee benefits expense’. Curtailment gains and losses are
accounted for as past service costs.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the Balance Sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus in the Company’s defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this
calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits available in the form reductions in future contributions to the plans.

Other Long term employee benefit comprise of Leave encashment which is provided for based on the actuarial valuation carried out as at the end of the year.
Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the
Company in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date.

Current tax represents tax currently payable based on taxable profit for the year determined in accordance with the provisions of the Income tax Act, 1961. Taxable profit differs
from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

Current and deferred tax for the year
Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the business combination.

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) data for its equity shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity 
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to equity 
shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

3.9 Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified 
as operating leases.

The Company's significant leasing arrangements are in respect of operating leases for premises that are cancelable in nature. The lease rentals under such agreements are 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as per the terms of the lease. 

Rental expense from operating leases is generally recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in 
line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases, such increases are recognised in the year in which such benefits accrue. 

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.
Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related
service.

Employee benefits include provident fund, superannuation fund, gratuity fund, compensated absences and post retirement medical benefits.

Defined contribution plans
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Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
Tata Projects Limited

3.11. Property plant and equipment & Intangible Assets

Depreciation and amortisation, impairment

Scaffolding materials 5 years
Wire ropes and slings 2 years
Computer including software 3 years
Motor cars under car policy for executives 4 years
Tunnel Formwork equipment 2 years 2 months
Leasehold improvements are amortized over the duration of the lease.

Assets costing less than   10,000 are fully depreciated in the year of capitalization.

3.12 Inventories

3.13 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

3.14 Financial Instruments

Raw materials are valued at lower of cost, ascertained on "weighted average" method and net realisable value.

Stores and spares are valued at cost or below on weighted average basis.

Provisions are recognised only when there is a present obligation as a result of past events and when a reasonable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made. The
amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

Contingent liabilities are disclosed for (i) possible obligation which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Company or (ii) present
obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the
obligation cannot be made. Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements.
When it is probable at any stage of the contract, that the total cost will exceed the total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised immediately

Finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realisable values. Cost comprises, material and applicable manufacturing overheads and excise duty.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

(i) Financial assets carried at amortised cost :-- A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to
hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

(ii) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income :-- Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these
financial assets are held within a business whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows that give rise on specified dates to solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding and by selling financial assets. 

The Company has made an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value of equity investments not held for trading. 

(iii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or losss :- Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised cost or at
fair value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are immediately recognised in profit or loss. 

(iv) Financial liabilities :-- Financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

(v) Investment in subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associatess :- On initial recognition, these investments are recognized at fair value plus any directly attributable
transaction cost. Subsequently, they are measured at cost. 

Depreciation has been provided on the written down value method as per the useful life as prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 except in respect of
following assets, in whose case, life of the assets has been assessed as under, based on technical advice, taking into account the nature of asset, the estimated usage of the
asset, the operating conditions of the asset etc. 

All property, plant and equipment are tested for impairment at the end of each financial year. The impairment loss being the excess of carrying value over the recoverable
value of the assets, if any, is charged to the statement of Profit and Loss in the respective financial year. The impairment loss recognized in prior years is reversed in cases
where the recoverable value exceeds the carrying value, upon reassessment in the subsequent years.

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation / amortization and impairment losses, if any. The cost of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and other attributable expenditure incurred in making the asset ready for its intended use and interest on borrowings attributable to acquisition
of qualifying property, plant and equipment up to the date the asset is ready for its intended use.

Property, plant and equipment retired from active use and held for sale are stated at the lower of their net book value and net realisable value and are disclosed separately.

The assets owned by jointly controlled operations (JCO), are depreciated over the duration of the project

Intangible Assets:
Intangible assets comprises of the application and other software procured through perpetual licences. The intangible assets are capitalised on implementation of such 
software and comprises of the prices paid for procuring the licence and implementation cost of such software.
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Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
Tata Projects Limited

3.16 Segment reporting

3.15 Jointly controlled operations

The Company, based on the "Management Approach" as defined in Ind AS 108, the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the Company's performance and
allocates resources based on the analysis of various performance indicators by business segments and geographic segments. Accordingly, information has been presented
both along business segments and geographic segments. 

Inter-segment revenue is accounted on the basis of transactions which are primarily determined based on market/fair value factors.
Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which relate to the Company as a whole and not allocable to segments on reasonable basis have been included under “unallocated
revenue/expenses/assets/liabilities”.
3.17 Operating cycle
The Company's activities (primarily construction activities) have an operating cycle that exceeds a period of twelve months. The Company has selected the duration of the
individual contracts as its operating cycle, wherever appropriate, for classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policies of the Company. Segment revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and
segment liabilities have been identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the segment.

Impairment of Financial Assets
The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost, trade receivables, other contractual
rights to receive cash or other financial asset. 

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18, the
Company always measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the Company has used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS
109. This expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking
information.

The accounts of the Company reflect its share of the Assets, Liabilities, Income and Expenditure of the jointly controlled operations which are accounted on the basis of the
audited accounts of the joint ventures on line-by-line basis with similar items in the Company’s accounts to the extent of the participating interest of the Company as per the
Joint Venture Agreements.
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Tata Projects Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
All amounts are in   Lakhs unless otherwise stated

The effect of the Company’s transition to Ind AS is summarized as follows:
(i)  Transition

(iv) Reconciliation of other comprehensive income as previously reported under Indian GAAP to Ind-AS 

(i) Transition 

Particulars Note No.
Deemed cost of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 1
Investments in subsidiaries, joint controlled entities and associates in separate financial statements 2
Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities 3
Business combinations 4

Notes:

(ii) Reconciliation of equity as previously reported under Indian GAAP to Ind-AS 

Particulars Note No.
As at 

31-Mar-2016
 As at 

1-Apr-2015

Equity as reported under IGAAPP 89,841.55 84,883.60                

Proposed dividend and related distribution tax i 1,218.62 1,062.17                  
Effect of discounting of employee loans ii (1.91) (4.98)                        
Effect of discounting of rental deposits iii (13.17) -                           
Effect of measuring guarantees issued at fair value iv 99.07                  -                           
Deferred tax on GAAP adjustments v (30.79) -                           

Equity as reported under Ind-AS 91,113.37 85,940.79                

(iii) Reconciliation of profit or loss as previously reported under Indian GAAP to Ind-AS 

Particulars
 For the Year ended 

31-Mar -2016 

Profit as reported under IGAAP 6,185.34                  

a. Increase (decrease) in net income for:
Effect of discounting of employee loans ii 3.07                         
Effect of discounting of rental deposits iii (13.17)                      
Effect of measuring guarantees issued at fair value iv 99.07                       
Deferred tax adjustments v (33.56)                      
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on defined benefit obligation recognised in other 
comprehensive income

vi 7.99                         

Profit as reported under Ind AS 6,248.74                  

2. In accordance with Ind-AS transitional provisions, the Company opted to consider previous GAAP carrying value of investments as deemed
cost on transition date for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in separate financial statement.
3. The Company has applied the derecognition requirements of financial assets and financial liabilities prospectively for transactions occurring on
or after 1 April 2015 (the transition date).
4. The Company has elected not to apply Ind AS 103 Business Combinations retrospectively to business combinations that occurred before the
date of transition.

1. In accordance with Ind-AS transitional provisions, the Company opted to consider previous GAAP carrying value of property, plant and
equipment, investment property, and intangible assets as deemed cost on transition date.

3.18 Transition to Ind-AS

(ii) Reconciliation of equity as previously reported under Indian GAAP to Ind-AS 
(iii) Reconciliation of profit or loss as previously reported under Indian GAAP to Ind-AS 

The Company has prepared the opening Balance Sheet as per Ind AS as of 1 April 2015 (the transition date) by recognising all assets and
liabilities whose recognition is required by Ind AS, not recognising items of assets or liabilities which are not permitted by Ind AS, by reclassifying
items from previous GAAP to Ind AS as required under Ind AS, and applying Ind AS in measurement of recognised assets and liabilities.
However, this principle is subject to certain exceptions and certain optional exemptions availed by the Company as detailed below:
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(iv) Reconciliation of other comprehensive income as previously reported under Indian GAAP to Ind-AS 

Comprehensive income as reported under IGAAP

Employee benefits – actuarial gains and losses vi (7.99)
Deferred tax adjustment of GAAP adjustments v 2.77

(5.22)

Comprehensive income as reported under Ind ASS (5.22)

Notes:

 Particulars  Previous 
GAAP

 Effect of 
transition to Ind 

AS
 Ind AS 

Net cash flows from operating activities 6,149.42   -                        6,149.42
Net cash flows from investing activities (9,497.75) -                       (9,497.75)
Net cash flows from financing activities (238.86) (8,598.01)             8,359.15
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (3,587.19) (8,598.01)             5,010.82
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 19,876.08 26,963.63 (7,087.55)
Other Changes 46.91        -                       46.91
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 16,335.80 18,365.62 (2,029.82)

vi. The Company recognises costs related to its post-employment defined benefit plan on an actuarial basis both under Indian GAAP and Ind AS.
Under Indian GAAP, the entire cost including actuarial gains and losses are charged to profit or loss. Under Ind AS, remeasurements are
recognised immediately in the Balance Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI. 

v.  Consequential deferred tax on all the above adjustments

(v) Effect of adoption of Ind AS on the Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2016:

i. Under Indian GAAP, dividends on equity shares recommended by the Board of Directors after the end of the reporting period but before the
financial statements were approved for issue were recognised in the financial statements as a liability. Under Ind AS, such dividends along with
the dividend distribution tax thereon are recognised as a liability when declared/ approved by the members in a general meeting.

Following is the impact on cash flows on transition from Indian GAAP to Ind-AS. Cash flows relating to interest are classified in a consistent
manner as operating, investing or financing each period.

ii. Under Indian GAAP, the loans extended to employees are not fairvalued. Under Ind AS, such loans are subject to fair valued on transition date
and every subsequent disbursments. Effect of fair valuation measurements are recognised to statement of profit and loss.

iii. Under Indian GAAP, Deposits paid for rental purpose for a period more than one year are not subjected to fair valuation. Under Ind AS, such
deposits are required for fair valuation. Effect of fair valuation measurements are recognised to statement of profit and loss.

iv. Under Ind AS, financial guarantee contracts are accounted as financial liabilities and measured initially at fair value and subsequently
amortised over a period of the contract period.
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Notes forming part of standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
All amounts are in   Lakhs unless otherwise stated

10 . Other financial assets

Non-current

Security deposits 1,839.92                   1,201.76                   1,030.55                     
Loans and advances to employees 6.24                          14.01                        22.86                          
Advance towards share application money 44.40                        -                            -                             

Total 1,890.56 1,215.77 1,053.41                     

Current

Security deposits 2,261.76                   1,059.38                   509.50                        
Unbilled revenue 34,209.67                 38,891.26                 25,941.25                   
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (94.00)                       -                            -                             

34,115.67                 38,891.26                 25,941.25                   

Inter corporate deposits 353.60                      -                            -                             
Receivable from joint venture partners 3,361.98                   4,074.16                   2,524.97                     
Contractual reimbursable expenses 3,123.33                   1,097.69                   1,642.57                     
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (14.00)                       -                            -                             

3,109.33                   1,097.69                   1,642.57                     
Insurance and other claims receivable

Unsecured, considered good 41.62                        30.06                        12.03                          
Doubtful 73.25                        73.25                        73.25                          

114.87                      103.31                      85.28                          
Less: Provision for doubtful claims (73.25)                       (73.25)                       (73.25)                        

41.62                        30.06                        12.03                          
Interest accruals
(i) Interest acrued on deposits 34.43                        28.53                        17.84                         
(ii) Interest accrued on loans to subsidiary (doubtful) -                            133.02                      133.02                       
(iii) Interest accrued on mobilisation advance given 60.49                        81.06                        342.39                       

94.92                        242.61                      493.25                        
Less: Provision for doubtful interest accrued on loans to subsidiary -                            (133.02)                     (133.02)                      

94.92                        109.59                      360.23                        

Total 43,338.88 45,262.14 30,990.55                  

Tata Projects Limited

As at 31-Mar-17 As at 31-Mar-16  As at 01-Apr-15 
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Tata Projects Limited
Notes forming part of standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
All amounts are in   Lakhs unless otherwise stated

Number of 
shares Amount

Number of 
shares Amount

Number of 
shares Amount

16. Equity share capital

Authorised share capital
         2,500,000 2,500.00                   2,500,000 2,500.00                      2,500,000 2,500.00            

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up

2,025,000         2,025.00            2,025,000      2,025.00            2,025,000         2,025.00            

Total 2,025,000         2,025.00            2,025,000      2,025.00            2,025,000         2,025.00            

Notes:

(i) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Equity shares with voting rights

Number of 
shares in '000s

Balance as at April 1st , 2015 2,025                 
Changes during the year                    -   

Balance as at March 31st , 2016 2,025                 
Changes during the year                    -   

Balance as at March 31, 2017 2,025                 

(ii) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to the equity shares

(iii) Shareholders holding more than 5% of the equity shares

Number of 
shares %

Number of 
shares %

Number of 
shares %

Equity shares of   100 each with voting rights

The Tata Power Company Limited 967,500            47.78 967,500       47.78 967,500           47.78
Omega TC Holdings Pte Limited 488,440            24.12 488,440       24.12 -                   -
Tata Steel Limited -                  - -               - 218,250           10.78
Tata Chemicals Limited 193,500            9.56 193,500       9.56 193,500           9.56
Tata Sons Limited 135,000            6.67 135,000       6.67 135,000           6.67
Voltas Limited 135,000            6.67 135,000       6.67 135,000           6.67
Tata Motors Limited -                  - -               - 135,000           6.67

As at 
April 01, 2015

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of � 100 each per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The
dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of
the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The
distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

As at 
March 31, 2017

As at 
March 31, 2017

As at
March 31, 2016

As at 
March 31, 2016

Equity shares of � 100 each with voting rights

Equity shares of � 100 each with voting rights

As at
April 01, 2015

64



Notes forming part of standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
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17.  Other equity Ind AS Ind AS Ind AS
 As at 

31-Mar-17
As at 

31-Mar-16
As at 

01-Apr-15

General Reserve 29,042.70          19,749.20               14,791.25        
Securities premium reserve 4,987.50             4,987.50                 4,987.50          
Retained earnings 66,580.56          66,376.67               66,162.04        

100,610.76 91,113.37               85,940.79
91,388.46          91,121.69               85,940.79        

17.1 General reserve

Year ended
31-Mar-17

Year ended
 31-Mar-16

Year ended
31-Mar-15

Balance at the beginning of the year 19,749.20          14,791.25               13854.29
Movements during the year 9,293.50             4,957.95                 936.96
Balance at the end of the year 29,042.70 19,749.20               14,791.25

Year ended 31-
Mar-17

Year ended
 31-Mar-16

Year ended
31-Mar-15

17.2 Securities premium reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year 4,987.50             4,987.50                 4,987.50          
Movements during the year -                      -                          -                   
Balance at the end of the year 4,987.50 4,987.50                 4,987.50

17.3 Retained earnings
Year ended 31-

Mar-17
Year ended
 31-Mar-16

Year ended
31-Mar-15

Balance at the beginning of the year 66,376.67          66,162.04               57,861.19        
Profit attributable to owners of the Company 11,116.14          6,248.74                 9,237.81          
Other comprehensive income arising from remeasurement of defined benefit obligation net of income tax (400.13)              (5.22)                       -                   
Payment of dividends on equity shares # (1,012.50)           (1,012.50)                -                   
Tax on dividend (206.12)              (58.44)                     
Transfer to general reserve (9,293.50)           (4,957.95)                (936.96)            
Balance at the end of the year 66,580.56 66,376.67               66,162.04

Retained earnings represents the Company's undistributed earnings after taxes.

#

Tata Projects Limited

The general reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. As the general reserve is created by a
transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of order comprehensive income, items included in the general reserve will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss.

On July 01, 2016, a dividend of � 50 per share (total dividend of � 1,012.50 lakhs) was paid to holders of fully paid equity shares. On August 07, 2015, the
dividend paid was � 50 per share (total dividend � 1,012.50 lakhs).
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All amounts are in   Lakhs unless otherwise stated

20.  Current borrowings

 As at 
31-Mar-17

 As at 
31-Mar-16

 As at 
01-Apr-15

Unsecured - at amortised cost
a) Loans repayable on demand

from banks
 - Overdraft facilities -                       -                            7,211.20            
 - Working capital demand Loans -                       1,500.00                   2,000.00            
 - Commercial advance -                       16,232.71                 4,526.13            
 - Commercial paper 15,000.00            -                            5,000.00            

b) Loans from other parties -                       -                            5,000.00            

Secured - at amortised cost
a) Loans repayable on demand

from banks
 - Overdraft facilities (refer Note (I) below) 17,061.40            18,365.62                19,752.43          
 - Working capital demand loans (refer Note (II) below) 7,500.00              21,499.55                 3,970.00            
 - Commercial advance 10,350.00            -                            -                     

Total 49,911.40 57,597.88 47,459.76          

Note :

I Overdraft facilities and Working capital demand loan are secured by:
(a) a first charge on the book debts, inventories and other current assets ranking pari-passu.
(b)

II

III

IV

V

VI

VII

VIII

Breach of loan agreement

Fixed rate loan in the form of Inter Corporate Deposit is not raised during 2016-17. The weighted average effective intereste rate is 0% p.a. (as at March
2016: 10.40% p.a.; 1st April, 2015: 10.40% p.a.)

Tata Projects Limited

 an exclusive charge on the entire receivables, property plant and euipment and current assets relating to the project being undertaken at Dubai, Kenya 
and Zambia. 

Working capital demand loan of � 7,500 lakhs (March 31, 2016 � 7,500 lakhs) taken by a Joint venture is secured by corporate guarantee given by the
Company. 

Overdraft/Cash Credit (OD/CC) with interest rates linked to Base rate/MCLR were availed in 2016-17. The current weighted average effective interest rate
on overdrafts is 9.46% p.a. (as at March 31, 2016: 9.80% p.a.; as at April 01, 2015: 10.79 %). Company utilises OD/CC from both Consortium and Non-
Consortium banks. OD/CC utilisation from Consorium banks is secured by hypothecation of company's stocks and receivables.

Commercial Paper with variable interest rate were issued during 2016-17. The current weighted average effective interest rate on Commercial Paper is
6.86% p.a. (as at March 31, 2016: 7.86% p.a.; as at April 01, 2015: 8.51% p.a.)

Fixed rate loans in the form of Working Capital Demand Loans (WCDL), for a tenor not exceeding 90 days for TPL and 180 days for Tata Aldesa JV, are
raised during 2016-17. The weighted average effective interest rate is 8.90% p.a.(as at March 31, 2016: 9.78% p.a.; as at April 01, 2015: 11.14% p.a.).
Company utilises WCDL from both Consortium and Non-Consortium banks. WCDL utilisation from Consorium banks is secured by hypothecation of
company's stocks and receivables.

Fixed rate loan in the form of Vendor Finance scheme, for a tenor of 1 year, raised during 2016-17. The weighted average effective intereste rate is 9.30%
p.a. (as at March 31, 2016: 9.52% p.a.; April 01, 2015: 10% p.a.)

Fixed rate loan in the form of commercial advance (Packing Credit) raised during 2016-17. The weighted average effective intereste rate is 9.42% p.a. (as at
March 31, 2016: 9.60% p.a.; April 01, 2015: Nil)

During the year, the interest and principal amounts, were remitted to lenders, on or before due date and there were no delays in this regard
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Notes forming part of standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
All amounts are in   Lakhs unless otherwise stated IND AS IND AS

24.  Revenue from operations 

(a) Income from contracts (refer note (i) below) 585,279.75                         420,728.82 

(b) Income from services (refer note (ii) below) 15,153.95                             13,198.69 

(c) Income from sale of goods (refer note (iii) below) 1,195.73                                 1,182.03 

(d) Share of profit from Joint Ventures 54.36                                      2,644.79 

(e) Other operating revenues (refer note (iv) below) 703.84                                       854.55 

Total 602,387.63                     438,608.88            

Notes:
(i) Income from contracts comprises :

- Supply of contract equipment and materials 239,912.50                         170,902.85 

- Civil and erection works 345,367.25                         249,825.97 

Total 585,279.75                     420,728.82            

(ii) Income from services comprises :
- Quality inspection services 15,153.95               13,198.69      
Total 15,153.95                       13,198.69              

(iii) Income from sale of goods comprises :
- Sale of BWRO units 1,195.73                 1,182.03        
Total 1,195.73                         1,182.03                

(iv) Other operating revenues comprises :
- Sale of scrap 544.25                    842.25           
- Duty drawback 159.59                    12.30             
Total 703.84                            854.55                   

For the year
 ended

March 31, 2017

For the year
 ended 

March 31, 2016
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Notes forming part of standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
All amounts are in   Lakhs unless otherwise stated IND AS IND AS

26. Contract execution expenses

(a)  Cost of supplies/erection and civil works * 486,080.80       317,807.29        
(b) Engineering fees 1,905.99           1,301.15            
(c) Insurance premium 2,885.94           2,028.03            
(d)  Bank guarantee and letter of credit charges 3,118.90           2,108.63            

Total 493,991.63       323,245.10        

* includes increase / (decrease) in excise duty of � 35.04 lakhs [previous year: � 42.85  lakhs] on finished goods

27. Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-process and contracts-in-progress

Inventories at the end of the year
Finished goods 12.31                13.25                 
Work-in-process 426.58              379.87               
Contracts-in-progress 120,678.18       72,068.94          

121,117.07       72,462.06          

Inventories at the beginning of the year
Finished goods 13.25                14.30                 
Work-in-process 379.87              614.63               
Contracts-in-progress 72,068.94         64,742.71          

72,462.06         65,371.64          
Net (increase)/decrease (48,655.01)       (7,090.42)           

28.  Employee benefits expense

(a) Salaries and wages 38,619.27         31,876.95          
(b) Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note no. 33.10) 3,160.44           2,371.86            
(c) Staff welfare expenses 1,637.44           1,255.17            

Total 43,417.15         35,503.98          

March 31, 2017

For the year
ended

For the year
ended

March 31, 2016
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29. Finance costs

Interest expense on
(i) Interest on bank overdrafts and loans (other than those from related 

parties) 6,764.65                     7,334.51                    

(ii) Mobilisation advance received 4,967.42                     1,918.71                    

(iii) Delayed payment of income tax 30.99                          2.37                           

(iv) Others 388.95                        139.78                       

Other borrowing costs 271.77                        57.74                         

Total 12,423.78                   9,453.11                    

30. Depreciation and amortisation expense
(i) Depreciation of plant, property and equipment  pertaining to continuing 

operations 8,479.38                     7,642.97                    

(ii) Amortisation of intangible assets 900.36                        724.51                       

Total 9,379.74 8,367.48                    

For the year
 ended

For the year
 ended 

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
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31.  Other expenses

Consumption of stores and spare parts                        320.18                       345.28 

Rent                     5,180.19                    3,892.47 

Repairs and maintenance 
- Building                          24.70                         12.34 
- Machinery                        386.48                       533.08 

- Others                        804.49                       741.18 

Processing charges                     1,127.45                    1,126.46 

Power and fuel                     1,476.75                    1,035.39 

Rates and taxes                     2,442.82                    1,053.65 

Insurance                        101.12                       132.62 

Motor vehicle expenses                     4,111.18                    3,799.79 

Travelling and conveyance                     4,133.40                    3,288.27 

Legal and professional                     7,999.43                    4,811.24 

Payment to auditors (refer note below)                          54.60                         48.82 

Communication expenses                     1,025.43                       783.12 

Printing and stationery                        526.19                       394.86 

Staff recruitment and training expenses                        153.24                       139.39 

Business development expenditure                        478.32                       397.42 

Bank charges                        309.00                       155.72 

Freight and handling charges                        158.79                       141.89 

Provision for impairment in the value of investments                          50.00                       500.00 

Bad debts                     2,443.15                    2,094.06 

Provision for doubtful trade receivables                     1,743.51                    2,732.30 

Less: provision for doubtful trade receivables reversed                    (2,924.14)                   (5,209.93)

Advances written off                        171.04                       110.00 

Add: provision for doubtful loans and advances                                -                           28.84 

Less: provision for doubtful loans and advances reversed                       (179.38)                               -   

Agency commission                     1,663.43                    1,130.72 

Brand equity contribution                     1,025.73                       615.69 

Loss on sale of plant, property & equipment                          22.92                       121.91 

Miscellaneous expenses                     2,186.83                    2,035.36 

Total 37,016.85                  26,991.94                 

Note:
Payment to auditors comprises (net of service tax)
(a) To statutory auditors

Audit fees 25.00                         25.00                        
Tax audit fees 2.00                           2.00                          
Limited review fees 6.00                           6.00                          
Other services 19.75                         13.50                        
Reimbursement of expenses -                             1.29                          

(b) To Cost auditor for cost audit 1.85                           1.03                          
Total 54.60                         48.82                        

March 31, 2016March 31, 2017

For the year
 ended 

For the year
 ended
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32. Income taxes relating to continuing operations
32.1  Income taxes recognised in profit and loss

For the year
 ended

For the year
 ended 

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Current tax
In respect of the current year 7,975.29               5,294.31                 

7,975.29 5,294.31                 
Deferred tax
In respect of the current year (820.03)                 (366.47)                  

(820.03) (366.47)                  
 Total income tax expense recognised in the current yearrelating to continuing operations 7,155.26               4,927.84                 

32.2 The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

For the year
 ended

For the year
 ended 

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

Profit before tax from continuing operations 18,271.40 11,176.58               

Income tax expense calculated 6,452.73               3,870.23                
Effect of Income Tax that is exempt from taxation (248.12)                 (249.29)                  
Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 950.21                  697.59                   
Effect of differential tax rates in Income 4.50                      9.25                       
Effect of Income tax on unrecognised Income -                        588.34                   
Others -                        11.72                     

7,159.32 4,927.84                
Adjustments recognised in the current year in relation to the current tax of previous years 4.06                      -                         
Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss (relating to continuing operations) 7,155.26               4,927.84                

32.3 Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income
For the year

 ended
For the year

 ended 
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

Deferred  tax
Remeasurements of defined benefit obligation 211.77                  2.77                       
Total income tax recognised in other comprehensive income 211.77 2.77                       

The tax rate used for the years 2016-2017 and 2015-2016 reconciliations above is the coporate tax rate of 30% payable by corporate 
entities in India on taxable profits under the Indian tax law 
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Note 33 Additional information to the financial statements 

For the year ended
March 31, 2017

For the year ended
March 31, 2016

 For the year ended
March 31, 2015 

 . in lakhs  . in lakhs  . in lakhs
33.1 Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)

(i)  Contingent liabilities:
(a) Claim against the Company not acknowledged as debt

Matters under dispute:
Sales tax / VAT 5,076.14                                6,114.61                    5,963.37                        
Service tax * 57,645.16                              23,908.13                  13,229.83                      
Income tax 74.62                                     74.62                         74.62                             

Third party claims from disputes relating to contracts 1,043.50                                9.40                           -                                 
* Exclude interest amount

(b) Guarantees
764,844.05                            529,279.99                431,176.92                    

64,950.00                              39,387.99                  14,751.23                      
(c) Others - liquidated damages  Amounts 

indeterminate 
Amounts 

indeterminate 
Amounts 

indeterminate 

Notes:
1

2

  in lakhs
(i) Tata Aldesa (JV)                            75,196.24 (March 31, 2016: � 50,279.80 lakhs; March 31, 2015: � 54,928.35 lakhs)
(ii) Tata Projects Balfour Beatty JV                                     1.00 (March 31, 2016: � 1.00 lakhs; March 31, 2015: � 1.00 lakhs)
(iii) Tata Projects Limited VNR JV Pkg 1                                 969.86 (March 31, 2016: � 969.86 lakhs; March 31, 2015: � 2,719.86 lakhs)

(iv) Tata Projects Limited VNR JV Pkg 2                              2,014.02 (March 31, 2016: � 2,013.11 lakhs; March 31, 2015: � 2,748.68 lakhs)
(v) GYT TPL                            11,780.77 (March 31, 2016: � 14,272.40 lakhs; March 31, 2015: � 10,988.01 lakhs)
(vi) Express Freight Consortium                            43,906.05 (March 31, 2016: � 21,289.93 lakhs; March 31, 2015: � Nil)
(vii) Sibmost- TPL                              4,977.07 (March 31, 2016: � Nil; March 31, 2015: � Nil)
(viii) TPL SUCG Consortium                            17,897.08 (March 31, 2016: � Nil; March 31, 2015: � Nil)
(ix) GULERMAK-TPL                              9,838.20 (March 31, 2016: � Nil; March 31, 2015: � Nil)
(x) GIL-TPL JV                            23,063.98 (March 31, 2016: � Nil; March 31, 2015: � Nil)
(xi) TPL-HGIEPL JV                              4,705.00 (March 31, 2016: � Nil; March 31, 2015: � Nil)
(xii) CCECC-TPL- JV                              1,189.71 (March 31, 2016: � Nil; March 31, 2015: � Nil)
(xiii) CEC-ITD Cem-TPL Joint Venture                            12,735.45 (March 31, 2016: � Nil; March 31, 2015: � Nil)
(xiv) Chint Electric & TPL                              3,509.92 (March 31, 2016: � Nil; March 31, 2015: � Nil)
(xv) TPL-TEDA Consortiun                              3,279.15 (March 31, 2016: � Nil; March 31, 2015: � Nil)
(xvi) ANGELIQUE - TPL JV                                 674.53 (March 31, 2016: � Nil; March 31, 2015: � Nil)
(xvii) AnTaCs Consortium                              1,753.04 (March 31, 2016: � Nil; March 31, 2015: � Nil)
(xviii) CICO-TPL Joint Venture                              3,533.08 (March 31, 2016: � Nil; March 31, 2015: � Nil)
(xix) CYMI-TPL JV                                 486.44 (March 31, 2016: � Nil; March 31, 2015: � Nil)
(xx) PGCIL-TPL JV                                 389.15 (March 31, 2016: � Nil; March 31, 2015: � Nil)
(xxi) GMR-Kalindee - JV                              1,106.96 (March 31, 2016: � Nil; March 31, 2015: � Nil)
(xxii) Tata Projects - Kalindee (JV)                              4,781.73 (March 31, 2016: � Nil; March 31, 2015: � Nil)
(xxiii)TATA PROJECTS LIMITED.M/s. Jyoti Bildtech 
Pvt.Ltd. (JV)

                             4,888.87 (March 31, 2016: � Nil; March 31, 2015: � Nil)

                         232,677.30

(ii)  Commitments
                                 5,578.46                        420.34                            393.32 Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and 

not provided for [net of advance � 636.17  lakhs (March 31, 2016 : � 40.08 lakhs; 
March 31, 2015 : � 77.67 lakhs)]

Performance and other bank guarantees issued by banks on behalf of the 
Company (refer Note 2 below)
Corporate guarantees (refer Note 1,2 below)

Future cash outflows in respect of the matters in (a) above are determinable only on receipt of judgements/decisions pending at various forums/authorities

Includes Corporate guarantees of � 5,500 lakhs (March 31, 2016 : � 5,500 lakhs) given on behalf of its subsidiary, Artson Engineering Limited and remaining
outstanding as on March 31, 2017. The amount of loan outstanding against such guarantees given is � 1,825.17 lakhs (March 31, 2016 : � 2,100 lakhs).

Includes � 2,32,112.85 lakhs (March 31, 2016: � 88,826.10 lakhs) given on behalf of the following jointly controlled operations.
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33.2

For the year ended 
March 31, 2017

For the year ended 
March 31, 2016

For the year ended 
March 31, 2015

  in lakhs   in lakhs   in lakhs

Contract revenue recognised during the year                        585,279.75                     420,728.82                 329,295.09 

2,930,008.00                    2,405,596.62                 2,124,920.04             

Advances received for contracts-in-progress 192,457.69                       108,397.14                    101,110.70                

Retention money for contracts-in-progress 147,358.55                       123,851.61                    128,632.25                

Gross amount due from customers for contract work 154,887.85                       110,980.20                    90,683.96                  

33.3

33.4

33.5

Disclosures required to be made under Ind AS -11 Construction Contracts

In line with accepted practice in construction business, certain revision to costs and billing of previous years which have crystallised during the year have
been dealt with in the period. The Statement of Profit and Loss for the period includes debits (net) aggregating � 11,383.64 lakhs [March 31, 2016 : �
11,761.22 lakhs - debits (net); March 31, 2015 : � 9,933.03 lakhs - debits (net)] on account of changes in estimates.

Aggregate of contract costs incurred and recognised profits (less
recognized losses) upto the reporting date

In the year 2007-08, under a sanctioned scheme of the Board for Industrial and Financial Reconstruction (BIFR), the Company became a strategic investor
in Artson Engineering Limited ("Artson"), a Public Limited Company listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange by acquiring 75% of the equity share capital of
Artson. In terms of the rehabilitation scheme sanctioned by BIFR, the Company is exempt from the provisions of Section 73 and 186 and relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (Section 58A and 372A and relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956) and the regulation there under for the
purpose of providing loan and guarantees and subscribing to the equity capital of Artson.   

The Company has an investment of � 276.90 lakhs in Artson, has loaned amounts aggregating � 4,030.39 lakhs and has given project advances
aggregating � 1198.50 lakhs on March 31, 2017. Of this, the management has extended the moratorium for repayment of loans aggregating � 4,030.39
lakhs for a further period, with repayments falling due in five instalments commencing March 31, 2018. Artson had applied to the BIFR seeking conversion
of the loan advanced by the Company and the interest thereon into 44,18,22,878, 4% Optionally Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares
of � 1/- each credited as fully paid up, to be allotted to the Company on a preferential allotment basis. Artson's net worth has been fully eroded. Artson's
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 have been prepared on going concern basis. Considering the order book position of Artson,
management is of the view that no provision is required on this account at this stage.

Consequent to the repeal of Sick Industries Companies Act, 1985, effective 1st December 2016, the BIFR was dissolved. The application of Artson before
ertstwhile BIFR seeking conversion of the loan advanced by the company along with interest, has been suspended. The Company and Artson have
mutually agreed to extend the tenor of the loan of � 4,030.39 lakhs, to 20 years, free of interest, with Company retaining the option of converting the loan,
at any time during the tenor, into any other instrument (other than direct equity). The terms of the loan restricts Artson from declaring dividend before
repaying the loan to Company. The loan, being a financial asset, has been discounted to present value and the discounted value of � 3,823.29 lakhs as at
31st March 2017 has been considered as investment in Note No. 7. The present value of the loan is � 207.10 Lakhs has been included under Loans to
related party in Note No 9.

Note 13 - Other non current assets includes � 610.00 lakhs (March 31, 2016: � 610.00 lakhs; April 01, 2015: � 610.00 lakhs) on account of taxes deducted
at source on inter state supplies under applicable Value Added Tax Acts. The Company has contested the deduction in the applicable judicial forum and is
confident of a favourable outcome in the matter.
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33.6 Segment Information

(i) EPC
(ii) Services
(iii) Others

and geographic segments of the group are: 
(i) Domestic
(ii) Overseas

 Reporting for business segment is on the following basis: 

For the purpose of monitoring segment performance and allocating resources between segments:

Group operates through 6 business units – EPC, Transmission & Distribution, Transportation, Construction & Environment, Urban
Infrastructure and Quality services and provides turnkey end to end project implementing services in these verticals. The projects are executed
both in India and abroad. Based on the "Management Approach" as defined in Ind AS 108, the Group evaluates the group's performance and
allocates resources based on the analysis of various performance indicators by business segments and geographic segments. Accordingly,
information has been presented both along business segments and geographic segments. The accounting principles used in the preparation of
the financial statements are consistently applied to record revenue and expenditure in individual segments, and are as set out in the significant
accounting policies.

Accordingly the business segments of the group are: 

Revenue relating to individual segment is recorded in accordance with accounting policies followed by the Group. All expenditure, which is
directly attributable to a project, is charged to the project and included in the respective segment to which the project related. The costs which
cannot be reasonably attributable to any project and are in the nature of general administrative overheads are shown as unallocable expenses. 

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the group's accounting policies described in note 3.17. Segement profit
represents the profit before tax earned by each segment without allocation of central administration costs and directors' salaries, share of profit
of joint ventures, other income, as well as finance costs. This is the measure reported to the chief operating decision maker for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance

Property, plant and equipment's employed in the specific project are allocated to the segment to which the project relates. The depreciation on
the corresponding assets is charged to respective segments. 

All other assets are allocated to reportable segments other than investments in associates, investments in joint ventures, other investments,
loans, other financial assets and current and deferred tax assets. 

All liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than borrowings, other financial liabilities, current and deferred tax liabilities. 
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(i) Segment revenues and results

Year ended 
31-Mar-17

Year ended 
31-Mar-16

Year ended 
31-Mar-17

Year ended 
31-Mar-16

Engineering, Procurement and Construction (EPC)                    586,037.95                   424,228.16               34,537.91                 26,383.18 
Services                      15,652.11                     13,496.54                 4,060.98                   3,590.49 
Others                        1,195.73                       1,182.03                    110.71                     (318.91)
Less : Inter segment revenue-Services                           498.16                          297.85                           -                                -   
Total                    602,387.63                   438,608.88               38,709.60                 29,654.76 
Other income                 2,973.28                   3,132.68 
Unallocable expenses (net)             (10,987.70)                (12,157.75)
Finance costs             (12,423.78)                  (9,453.11)
Total 18,271.40              11,176.58                

(ii) Segment assets and liabilities
As at 

31-Mar-17
As at 

31-Mar-16
As at 

1-Apr-15
Segment Assets
Engineering, Procurement and Construction 614,696.68                  487,349.98            438,222.56               
Services 9,350.63                      6,734.21                5,046.36                  
Others 1,420.82                      1,115.97                1,974.88                  
Total segment assets 625,468.13                  495,200.16            445,243.80               
Unallocated 50,140.27                    39,934.89              35,624.21                
Total 675,608.40                  535,135.05            480,868.01               

Segment Liabilities
Engineering, Procurement and Construction 515,750.16                  377,848.99            338,103.82               
Services 177.75                         849.16                   788.61                     
Others 478.12                         509.79                   1,211.21                  
Total segment liabilities 516,406.03                  379,207.94            340,103.64               
Unallocated 56,566.61                    62,788.74              52,798.58                
Total 572,972.64                  441,996.68            392,902.22               

(iii) Other segment information

 Year ended 
31-Mar-17

 Year ended 
31-Mar-16

 Year ended 
31-Mar-17

 Year ended 
31-Mar-16

Engineering, Procurement and Construction 7,315.65                       6,105.97                      9,229.67                6,529.63                  
Services 22.89                            16.16                           4.47                      0.75                         
Others 1.00                              1.90                            -                        -                           
Total 7,339.53                       6,124.03                      9,234.14                6,530.38                  
Unallocated 2,040.21                       2,243.45                      3,308.00                3,976.58                  
Total 9,379.74                       8,367.48                      12,542.14              10,506.96                

The following is an analysis of the Company's revenue and results from continuing operations by reportable segment
Segment Revenue Segment profit

 Depreciation and amortisation  Addition to plant, property and 
equipment
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(iv) Geographical information   

 Year ended 
31-Mar-17

 Year ended 
31-Mar-16

 As at 
31-Mar-17

 As at 
31-Mar-16

 As at
1-Apr-15

India 558,899.23                   410,592.78                  26,217.96              23,900.92                22,009.84           
Kenya 1,375.32                       2,468.40                      25.72                     38.30                       57.11                  
Zambia 1,960.01                       1,278.31                      -                        -                           -                      
United Arab Emirates 36,736.71                     19,917.92                    104.97                   89.60                       20.70                  
Korea 428.91                          651.24                         -                        -                           -                      
Ethiopia 349.15                          -                              1.77                      -                           -                      
Nepal 2,019.92                       1,826.44                      7.73                      1.07                         1.79                    
Others 618.38                          1,873.79                      0.34                      -                           -                      

602,387.63                   438,608.88                  26,358.49              24,029.89                22,089.44           

 Revenue from external customers  Plant, property and equipment 

The Company is executing projects across multiple geographies with India being country of domicile, the details of revenue and Plant, property and equipment are as follows:
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33.7 Financial Instruments
(i) Capital Management

The company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements

(ii) Gearing Ratio
The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as follows

As at As at As at 
31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 01-Apr-15

Debt 49,919.76 57,613.67      47,485.82           
Cash and bank balances 28,614.32 16,335.80      19,876.08           
Net Debt 21,305.44 41,277.87      27,609.74           
Total Equity (Share Capital + Reserves)) 102,635.76 93,138.37      87,965.79           
Net Debt to equity ratio 21% 44% 31%

(iii) Categories of Financial instruments
As at As at As at 

31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 01-Apr-15
Non current
Investments in joint ventures -                  -                 500.00
Investments in subsidiaries 5,671.84         993.98            522.45
Trade receivables 8,119.84         6,941.80         3,783.99
Loans* 207.10 -                 -
Other Financial assets 1,890.56         1,215.77         1,053.41
Current
Trade receivables 330,986.32     261,811.22     241,074.11         
Cash and cash equivalents 28,614.32 16,335.80       19,876.08           
Loans 15,932.29 -                 -
Other financial assets 43,338.88 45,262.14       30,990.55           

434,761.15 332,560.71     297,300.59         

As at As at As at 
Financial Liabilities 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 01-Apr-15
Non current
Borrowings 8.36 15.79              26.06
Current
Borrowings 49,911.40 57,597.88       47,459.76           
Trade payables 319,793.96 267,112.25     234,388.18         
Other financial liabilities 2,297.16         2,175.42         1,662.80

372,010.88 326,901.34     283,536.80         

(iv) Financial Risk Management Objectives

* Considered as financial asset as at March 31, 2017 as the terms of the loan are modified to a 20 year loan from that of a loan with convertible option to 
equity in the earlier periods.

The Company's Corporate Treasury function provides services to the business, co-ordinates access to domestic  and international markets, monitors and 
manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the company through internal risk reports which analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of risks
These risks include market risk (including currency risk, interest rate and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The company seeks to minimise the effects of these risks by using derivative financial instruments to hedge risk exposures. The use of financial derivatives is 
governed by the Company's policies approved by the board of directors, which provide written principles on foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit 
risk, the use of financial instruments, and the investment of excess liquidity. Compliance with policies and exposure limits is reviewed by the internal auditors 
on a periodic basis. The Company does not enter into or trade financial instruments, including derivative financial instruments, for a speculative purposes.

The Corporate treasury function reports monthly to the CFO and quarterly to the Board of Directors, who monitor risks and policies implemented to mitigate 
risk exposures

The Company reviews its capital requirements on an annual basis, in the form of Annual Operating Plan(AOP). The AOP of the company aggregates the 
capital required for execution of projects identified and the financing mechanism of such requirements is determined as part of AOP.  The Company budgeted
the gearing ratio for the year 2016-17 about 47%. The gearing ratio as at March 31, 2017 was 20%, was within the targeted gearing ratio. 

The capital structure of the company comprises of net debt (borrowings reduced by cash and bank balances) and equity

The Company's business model is working capital centric. The company manages its working capital needs  and long term capital expenditure, through a 
balanced mix of capital (including retained earnings) and short term debt. 
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(v) Market risk

(vi) Foreign Currency risk management

As at 
31-Mar-17

As at 
31-Mar-16

As at 
1-Apr-15

As at 
31-Mar-17

As at 
31-Mar-16

As at 
1-Apr-15

United Arab Emirates AED 11,688.25 10,450.99 10,753.56   14,865.93   13,283.60   9,469.09     
Kenyan Shilling KES 2,421.95       2,905.34     3,256.95     2,855.86     4,283.40     3,090.45     
South Korean Won KRW 5.26              17.08          29.22          1,192.95     1,165.70     665.45        
Qatari Rial QAR 133.36          165.81        -              77.90          77.90          77.90          
Euro EUR 3,193.32       905.80        114.42        2,979.74     4,018.30     699.66        
South African Rand ZAR -                -              -              -              33.72          62.34          
Saudi Riyal SAR 34.39            34.39          34.39          -              -              83.69          
Zambian Kwacha ZMW 352.61          2,559.91     4,636.95     152.69        412.26        655.48        
US Dollar USD 2,886.10       701.07        1,037.27     13,196.14   9,529.51     11,241.01   
Swiss Franc CHF 5.09              5.09            4.72            -              -              -              
Ethiopian Birr ETB 1,497.91       -              -              875.07        -              -              
Chinese Yuan Renminbi CNY 0.78              -              -              4,156.93     -              -              
Thai Baht THB 8.55              -              -              50.72          -              -              
Nepalese Rupee NPR 3,054.15       364.10        1,492.16     3,975.44     931.47        1,651.60     
Japanese Yen JPY -                -              237.65        -              -              -              
Singapore Dollar SGD -                1.21            1.21            -              -              0.67            

(vii) Foreign Currency sensitivity analysis
The above exposures when subjected to a 
sensitivity of 5% have the following impact:

As at 
31-Mar-17

As at 
31-Mar-16

As at 
1-Apr-15

United Arab Emirates AED 158.88          141.63        (64.22)        
Kenyan Shilling KES 21.70            68.90          (8.33)          
South Korean Won KRW 59.38            57.43          31.81          
Qatari Rial QAR (2.77)            (4.40)          3.90            
Euro EUR (10.68)          155.63        29.26          
South African Rand ZAR -               1.69            3.12            
Saudi Riyal SAR (1.72)            (1.72)          2.47            
Zambian Kwacha ZMW (10.00)          (107.38)      (199.07)      
US Dollar USD 515.50          441.42        510.19        
Swiss Franc CHF (0.25)            (0.25)          (0.24)          
Ethiopian Birr ETB (31.14)          -             -             
Chinese Yuan Renminbi CNY 207.81          -             -             
Thai Baht THB 2.11              -             -             
Nepalese Rupee NPR 46.06            28.37          7.97            
Japanese Yen JPY -               -             (11.88)        
Singapore Dollar SGD -               (0.06)          (0.03)          

(viii) Forward Foreign Exchange contracts

March 31, 2017
Less than 
1 month

1-3 months 3 months 
to 1 year

Foreign exchange forward contracts 248.47      495.47          739.05        
March 31, 2016
Foreign exchange forward contracts -            -                -              
April  01, 2015
Foreign exchange forward contracts -            -                -              

(ix) Interest rate risk management

(x) Interest rate sensitivity analysis

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the Company's:

a) Profit for the year ended March 31, 2017 would decrease/increase by  300 lakhs (for the year ended March 31, 2016:  298 lakhs 
decrease/increase). This is mainly attributable to Company's exposure to interest rates on its variable rate borrowings; and

b) There being no debt instrument passing through FVTOCI, there would not be any impact of such change in interest rate, on OCI
The company's sensitivity to interest rates has decreased during the current year mainly due to the structure financial products negotiated by the 
company with the lenders and also due to the reduction in the prime lending rates of the lenders in general

The Company's activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. The company 
enters into  a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to foreign currency risk and interest rate risk, including:

a) forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge the exchange rate risk arising on the import of goods and services overseas

The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise. Exchange 
rate exposures are managed within approved policy parameters utilising forward foreign exchange contracts

Assets as at (  lakhs)
Description

Liabilities as at (  lakhs)

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk because of its borrowing funds at both fixed and floating interest rates. The risk is managed by the 
company by maintaining appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings. Company regularly swaps between conventional working capital 
borrowings with Commercial Paper, thus reducing the interest cost. Hedging activities are evaluated regularly to align with interest rate views and 
defined risk appetite, ensuring the most cost-effective hedging strategies are applied.

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for non derivative instruments at the end of the reporting 
period, as the company does not transact in any derivative instruments. For floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of 
the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used when 
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in 
interest rates

The carrying amounts of the company's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period are 
as follows:

Currency

Net exposure - Profit/(Loss)
Increase in rate by 5%

The following tale details the Company's liquidity analysis for its derivative financial instruments. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted contractual net outflows on derivative instruments that settle on a net basis.

Description Currency
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(xi) Other price risks

(xii) Credit Risk Management

(xiii) Liquidity Risk Management

Company's investments in equity instruments are restricted to its investment in its subsidiaries and associates which are held for strategic purposes
rather than for trading. The Company, as on the reporting date of March 31, 2017 has about 8 subsidiaries, which include companies incorporated in
India and abroad. All the subsidiaries are closely held companies and unlisted, except Artson Engineers Ltd, which is listed on BSE. Company holds
75% of the stake. However the purpose of all such investments being strategic rather than for trading, as mentioned above, the Company does not
recognise any impact of sensitivity in the equity prices

The credit risk to the company arises from three sources:

a) Customers, who default on their contractual obligations, thus resulting in financial loss to the company
b) Non certification by the customers, either in part or in full, the works billed as per the contract, being non claimable cost as per the terms of the
contract with the customer
c) Subsidiaries, Associates or Unincorporated JVs, on whose behalf, the company has provided guarantees, both Bank and Corporate, in the event of
invocation of such guarantees by the beneficiaries

Company being an EPC contractor, has a constant liquidity pressures to meet the project requirements. These requirements are met by a balanced mix
of borrowings and project cash flows. Cash flow forecast is made for all projects on monthly basis and the same are tracked for actual performance on
daily basis. Shortfall in cash flows are matched through short term borrowings and other strategic financing means. The daily project requirements are
met by allocating the daily aggregated cash flows among the projects. Company has established practice of prioritising the site level payments and
regulatory payments above other requirements

a) Customers:
Company evaluates the credentials of a customer at a very early stage of the bid. Company has adopted a policy of 3 tier verification before
participating for any bid. The first step of such verification includes verification of customer credentials. The company, as part of verification of the
customer credentials, ensures the compliance with the following criterion,
(i) Customer's financial health by examining the audited financial statements
(ii) Whether the Customer has achieved the financial closure for the work for which the company is bidding
(iii) Where the customer is a private entity, the rating of the customer by a reputed agency like Dun & Bradstreet 
(iv) Brand and market reputation of the customer
(v) Details of other contractors working with the customer
(v) Where the customer is Public Sector Undertaking, sanction and availability of adequate financial resources for the proposed work
Company makes provision on it's financial assets, on every reporting period, as per Expected Credit Loss Method. The provision is made separately for
each financial assists of each business line. The percentage at which the provision is made, is determined on the basis of historical experience of such
provisions, modified to the current and prospective business and customer profile. 

Trade receivables consist of large number of customers, spread across diverse industries and geographical areas. Majority of the customers of the
company comprise of Public Sector Undertakings, with whom the company does not perceive any credit risk. As regards the customers from private
sector, company carries out financial evaluation on regular basis and provides for any amount perceived as non realisable, in the books of accounts.

b) Non certification of works billed
The costs incurred on projects are regularly monitored through the Project budgets. Costs which are incurred beyond the agreed terms and conditions
of the contract, would be claimed from the customer, based on the actual works performed. The realisability of such claims, is verified by independent
professionals, who certify the tenability of such claims and also the collectible amounts, by applying appropriate probabilities. Costs, which are
id tifi d t bl t b d th ll tibl t ti d b ld b id d i th b k f tc) Guarantees:
Company provides guarantees, both from its line of credit and as a corporate, on behalf of it's subsidiaries, associates and Unincorporated Joint

Ventures. These guarantees are provided to customers of the said entities. While these guarantees are disclosed as contingent liabilities in the
financial statements, Company does not perceive any credit risk in respect of any of such guarantees issued.
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Tata Projects Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
All amounts are in   Lakhs unless otherwise stated

33.10 Employee benefit plan

Change in Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) during the year

Gratuity Pension Post retirement 
Benefits

Gratuity Pension Post retirement 
Benefits

Opening defined benefit obligations 3,242.87                345.37                  47.88                    2,916.89               337.58                    46.54                        
Current service cost 437.37                   -                        -                        381.79                  -                          -                            
Interest Cost (on DBO) 231.91                   25.50                    3.56                      209.90                  25.36                      3.52                          
Actuarial (Gains)/losses arising from changes in financial  
assumptions 253.23                    21.46                      3.32                        28.95                      2.91                        0.46                           
Actuarial (Gains)/losses arising from experience assumptions 223.65                   -                        (2.86)                     (30.84)                   -                          (2.08)                         
Exchange differences on foreign plans -                         29.26                    -                        -                        20.69                      -                            
Benefits paid (420.54)                  (44.08)                   (1.65)                     (263.82)                 (41.17)                     (0.56)                         
Closing defined benefit obligation 3,968.49 377.51 50.25 3,242.87 345.37                    47.88

Gratuity Pension Post retirement 
Benefits Gratuity Pension Post retirement 

Benefits
Opening fair value of plan assets 3,226.89                -                        -                        2,927.86               -                          -                            
Interest income (on Plan Assets) 238.50                   -                        -                        218.78                  -                          -                            
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest 
expense (83.84)                     -                          -                          12.08                      -                          -                             
Contribution from the employer 930.97                   44.08                    1.65                      332.00                  41.18                      0.56                          
Benefits paid (420.54)                  (44.08)                   (1.65)                     (263.83)                 (41.18)                     (0.56)                         
Closing fair value of plan assets 3,891.98 - - 3,226.89 -                          -

Gratuity Pension Post retirement 
Benefits Gratuity Pension Post retirement 

Benefits
Present value of funded defined benefit obligation 3,968.47                -                        -                        3,242.87               -                          -                            
Fair value of plan assets 3,891.98                -                        -                        3,226.89               -                          -                            
Funded status 76.49                     -                        -                        15.98                    -                          -
Present value of unfunded defined benefit obligation -                         378.00                  50.25                    -                        345.00                    47.88                        
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation 76.49                     378.00                  50.25                    15.98                    345.00                    47.88

Net Defined benefit obligation bifurcated as follows
Current -                         44.00                    5.00                      -                        41.00                      5.00                          
Non-Current 76.49                     334.00                  45.25                    15.98                    304.00                    42.88                        
Total 76.49                     378.00 50.25 15.98 345.00                    47.88

Gratuity Pension Post retirement 
Benefits

Gratuity Pension Post retirement 
Benefits

-
Current Service Cost 437.37                   25.50                    3.56                      381.79                  25.36                      3.52                          
Net Interest expense (6.60)                      -                        -                        (8.88)                     -                          -                            
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in profit or 
loss 430.77                    25.50                      3.56                        372.91                    25.36                      3.52                           

Return on the net defined benefit liability (on Plan Assets) 83.84                     -                        -                        (12.08)                   -                          -                            
Actuarial (Gains)/losses arising from changes in financial  
assumptions

253.23                    21.47                      3.33                        28.95                      2.90                        0.46                           

Actuarial (Gains)/losses arising from experience assumptions 223.64                   29.26                    (2.87)                     (30.84)                   20.70                      (2.09)                         
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other 
comprehensive income 560.71                    50.73                      0.46                        (13.98)                     23.60                      (1.63)                          

Year ended 
31-Mar-17

Year ended 
31-Mar-16Components of employer expense

The remeasurement of the net defined liability is included in other comprehensive income

(i) Defined Contribution plan

(ii) Defined benefit plans

In respect of defined contribution plans, an amount of � 2,924.78 lakhs ( March 31, 2016: � 2,053.97 lakhs) has been recognised as expense in the statement of Profit and Loss during the year

Amount recognised in Balance sheet

Change in fair value of plant assets during the year

Year ended 
31-Mar-17

Year ended 
31-Mar-16

As at 31-Mar-17 As at  31-Mar-16

Year ended 
31-Mar-17

Year ended 
31-Mar-16
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Gratuity Pension
Post retirement 

Benefits Gratuity Pension
Post retirement 

Benefits
-Equity instruments funds 3,891.99                -                        -                        - -                          0
Total 3,891.99 - - - - -

Gratuity Pension Post retirement 
Benefits

Gratuity Pension Post retirement 
Benefits

Discount rate(s) 6.80% 6.80% 6.80% 7.85% 7.85% 7.85%
Expected rate(s) of salary increase 6% - - 6% - -
Retirement Age* 60 yrs. 60 yrs. 60 yrs. 60 yrs. 60 yrs. 60 yrs.
Leaving service 10% - - 10% - -

* Mortality: Published rates under the Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006-08) Ult table.

Sensitivity Analysis

Gratuity Pension Post retirement 
Benefits

Discount rate
Impact of increase in 50 bps on DBO -3.13% -2.79% -3.26%
Impact of decrease in 50 bps on DBO 3.32% 2.95% 3.47%
Life Expectancy
Life Expectancy 1 year increase 0.00% -5.42% -3.72%
Life Expectancy 1 year decrease 0.00% 5.00% 3.46%
Salary Escalation Rate
Impact of increase in 50 bps on DBO 3.32% 0.00% 0.00%
Impact of decrease in 50 bps on DBO -3.17% 0.00% 0.00%

Projected Plan Cash Flow

Maturity Profile Gratuity Pension Benefits
Expected Benefits for year 1 581.11 44.08 5
Expected Benefits for year 2 453.05 42.81 4.92
Expected Benefits for year 3 389.88 41.44 4.84
Expected Benefits for year 4 409.74 39.98 4.75
Expected Benefits for year 5 499.37 38.42 4.66
Expected Benefits for year 6 554.13 36.78 4.55
Expected Benefits for year 7 337.93 35.05 4.44
Expected Benefits for year 8 337.93 33.26 4.32
Expected Benefits for year 9 387.06 31.41 4.2
Expected Benefits for year 10 and above 2760.75 265.51 46.83
Weighted average duration to the payment of these cash flows 6.45 Years 5.74 Years 6.73 Years

The fair value of the plan assets for India and overseas plan at the end of the reporting period for each category , are as follows

Fair value of plan assets as at
31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

For the period ended
31-Mar-17

The trustees of the plan have outsourced the investment management of the fund to Life Insurance Corporation (LIC). The insurance company in turn manages these funds as per the mandate
provided to them by the trustees and the asset allocation which is within the permissible limits prescribed in the insurance regulations.

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

31-Mar-16

For the period ended
31-Mar-17

The expected cash flow profile of the benefits to be paid to the current membership of the plan, are as follows:

Valuation as at
31-Mar-17
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33.11. Joint Operation

As at
March 31, 2017

As at
March 31, 2016

As at
April 01, 2015

TPL's Share TPL's Share TPL's Share
TPL - VNR Infrastructure Ltd - Package 1 (JV) (TPL VNR JV - Pkg 1) 80% 80% 80%
TPL - VNR Infrastructure Ltd - Package 2 (JV) (TPL VNR JV - Pkg 2) 85% 85% 85%
GMR Kalindee - TPL JV MMTS Pkg 1 9% 9% 9%
GMR Kalindee - TPL JV MMTS Pkg 2 25% 25% 25%
GMR Kalindee - TPL JV MMTS Pkg 3 17% 17% 17%
GMR Kalindee - TPL JV Jhansi-Bhimsen 14% 14% 14%
TPL Kalindee JV 90% 90% 90%
SIBMOST-TPL 49%                        -                              -   
Tata Aldesa JV 50% 50% 50%
GIL (GMR)-TPL 50%                        -                              -   
Express Freight Consortium 19%                        -                              -   
TPL-SUCG Consortium 85%                        -                              -   
TPL-JBTPL 75%                        -                              -   
GYT-TPL JV 49% 49% 49%
Gulermak-TPL JV 70%                        -                              -   
CEC-ITD Cem-TPL JV 20%                        -                              -   
CCECC-TPL JV 49%                        -                              -   
TPL-HGIEPL JV 74%                        -                              -   
TPL-Brookfield JV 50%                        -                              -   
TPL Chint 95%                        -                              -   

Tata Projects Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
All amounts are in   Lakhs unless otherwise stated

Name of the Joint venture
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Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
All amounts are in   Lakhs unless otherwise stated

33.12 Operating lease arrangements

(i) Payments recognised as an expense
For the year ended

March 31, 2017
For the year ended

March 31, 2016

Minimum Lease payments 389.27                     605.23                     
389.27                     605.23

(ii) Non-cancellable operating lease commitments

As at 
31-Mar-17

As at 
31-Mar-16

 As at 
1-Apr-15

Not later than 1 year 488.32                 116.19                     497.41                     
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 1,696.42              346.92                     463.11                     
Later than 5 years 891.84                 90.86                       90.86                       

3,076.58 553.97                     1,051.38                   

33.13 Corporate social responsibility

Amount spent during the year is:

Sl No. Total

-
(-)

278.56
(300.36)

33.14 Dividend paid in foreign currency:

Amount of dividend remitted in foreign currency (�) 244.22 -                           
Total number of non-resident shareholders (to whom the dividends were remitted in foreign currency)                1 -                           
Total number of shares held by them on which dividend was due 488,440                   -                           

Year to which the dividend relates Final Dividend of
2015-16.

33.15

SBNs Other denomination 
notes

Total

Closing cash in hand as on 08.11.2016 47.08                                             69.53 116.61                      
(+) Permitted receipts -                                               294.00 294.00                      
(+) Unpermitted receipts 0.31                                                     -   0.31                          
(-) Permitted payments -                                               320.95 320.95                      
(-) Unpermitted payments 24.15                                                   -   24.15                        
(-) Amount deposited in Banks 23.24                                                   -   23.24                        
Closing cash in hand as on 30.12.2016                           -                           42.58                         42.58 

Tata Projects Limited

For the year 
endedMarch 31, 

2016
Particulars

For the year 
endedMarch 31, 

2017

Amounts in bracket indicate previous years numbers

During the year, as per the Companies Act, 2013, Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year is � 247.58 Lac (March 31,2016: � 
248.92 Lac)

CSR activities In cash Yet to be paid in 
Cash

(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset - -
(-) (-)

Details of Specified Bank Notes (SBN) held and transacted during the period from 8 November, 2016 to 30 December 2016:                                     

Particulars

278.56 -
(300.36) (-)(ii) On purposes other than (i) above
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Tata Projects Limited

Financial Statistics

Rs.in Lacs

2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17

1 Gross Revenue from Operations 359,010.57   367,024.31   344,439.97   438,608.88   602,387.63   

2
Operating Expenditure (Incl. Indirect 
Taxes and Duties) 346,878.14   348,638.79   321,212.33   412,648.24   565,285.99   

3 Operating Profit 12,132.43     18,385.52     23,227.64     25,960.64     37,101.64     

4 Other Income 6,109.76       4,494.06       6,230.08       2,940.12       2,973.28       

5 Interest 3,016.75       3,466.89       7,161.58       9,453.11       12,423.78     

6 Depreciation and Amortisation 3,696.13       4,971.48       7,941.65       8,368.03       9,379.74       

7 Profit before Taxation 11,529.31     14,441.21     14,354.49     11,079.62     18,271.40     

8 Profit after Taxation 8,487.61       9,794.10       9,369.64       6,185.34       11,116.14     

9 Earning Per Share (EPS) - Rs./ shares 419               484               462.70          305.45          548.95          

10 Dividend per share (%) 50% 50% 0.50              0.50              0.75              

11 Dividend Pay-out Ratio (%) 14% 12% 11% 20% 16%

12 Return On Capital Employed (ROCE) % 21% 17% 18% 16% 22%

13 Return On Net Worth (RONW) % 12% 12% 11% 7% 11%

14 Long Term Debts / Equity 0.06              0.37              0.55              0.63              0.49              

15 Total Debts / Equity 0.06              0.37              0.55              0.63              0.49              

16 Capital 2,025.00       2,025.00       2,025.00       2,025.00       2,025.00       

17 Shareholder's Reserves 67,921.38     76,702.98     84,883.60     89,841.55     100,610.76   

18 Debenture Redemption Reserve -                -                -                -                -                

19 Borrowings 3,889.18       29,073.96     47,494.13     57,620.52     49,919.76     

20 Gross Block (incl. Capital WIP) 38,740.42     45,760.20     50,838.71     60,650.70     43,844.43     

21 Depreciation 16,356.14     21,009.51     28,702.15     36,574.24     17,485.94     

22 Net Block 22,384.28     24,750.69     22,136.56     24,076.46     26,358.49     
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

3. Significant Accounting Policies : 

3.1 Statement of compliance

3.2  Basis of preparation and presentation

3.3  Basis of consolidation

(a)

(b)

(c)

As at March 31, 2017 As at March 31, 2016 As at April 01, 2015
India 75 75 75

Mauritius 70 70 70
South Africa 60 60 60

TQ Services Europe GmbH Germany 100 100 100
India 100 100 100
India 100 100 100
Oman 70 70 -
China 100 - -

Industrial Quality Services LLC
Ind Project Engineering (Shanghai) Co. Ltd (with effect from 6th June 2016)

Name of the subsidiary

The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other relevant provisions of the Act.

Up to the year ended March 31, 2016, the Group prepared its financial statements in accordance with the requirements of previous generally accepted accounting principles
(“Previous GAAP”), which includes Accounting Standards (“AS”) notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 and prescribed under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013, as applicable and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 2013 Act”)/ Companies Act, 1956 (“the 1956 Act”), as applicable. 

These are the Group's first Ind AS financial statements. The date of transition to Ind AS is April 1, 2015. Refer Note 3.19 for the details of first-time adoption exemptions availed by
the Group.

• Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

• Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

• Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Share of profit/loss, assets and liabilities in the jointly controlled entities, which are not subsidiaries, have been consolidated on equity method by recognising profit  
proportionate to the extent of the Group's equity interest in such entity as per Ind AS 28 Financial Reporting of Interests in Joint Ventures.   

Artson Engineering Limited
TPL-TQA Quality Services (Mauritius) Pty Limited
TPL-TQA Quality Services South Africa (Pty) Limited

Country of incorporation Percentage of ownership interest

The excess of cost to the group of its investments in the subsidiary companies over its share of equity of the subsidiary companies, at the dates on which the investments in the
subsidiary companies were made, is recognised as `Goodwill` being an asset in the consolidated financial statements and is tested for impairment on annual basis. On the other
hand, where the share of equity in the subsidiary companies as on the date of investment is in excess of cost of investments of the group, it is recognised as `Capital Reserve` and
shown under the head `Reserves and surplus`, in the consolidated financial statements. The `Goodwill` / `Capital Reserve` is determined separately for each subsidiary company
and such amounts are not set off between different entities.

Minority interest in the net assets of the consolidated subsidiaries consist of the amount of equity attributable to the minority shareholders at the date on which investments in the
subsidiary companies were made and further movements in their share in the equity, subsequent to the dates of investments. Net profit / loss for the year of the subsidiaries
attributable to minority interest is identified and adjusted against the profit after tax of the Group in order to arrive at the income attributable to shareholders of the Tata Projects
Limited ("the Company").

Following subsidiary companies, associates and jointly controlled entities have been considered in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

The subsidiaries considered in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are

Ujjwal Pune Limited (formerly Tata Projects Infrastructure Limited) 
TQ Cert Private Limited (formerly Food Cert India Private Limited)

Tata Projects Limited

The financial statements of the subsidiary companies and jointly controlled entities used in the consolidation are drawn up to the same reporting date as that of the company
i.e., March 31, 2017, except for a jointly controlled entity as mentioned below for which financial statements as on reporting date are not available. These have been
consolidated based on latest available financial statements. Necessary adjustments have been made, for the effects of significant transaction and other events between the
reporting dates of the such financial statements and these consolidated financial statements.

The financial statements of the Group have been combined on a line-by-line basic by adding together like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after elimination 
intra-group balances, intra group transactions and resulting unrealised profits or losses, unless cost cannot be recovered.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

The consolidated financial statements relate to Tata Projects Limited, its subsidiary companies and jointly controlled entities ( the "Group'') have been prepared on the following
basis:

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless
of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of Ind
AS 102, leasing transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realizable value in
Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36. 
In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

The principal accounting policies are set out below. 
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
Tata Projects Limited

Interest in Joint ventures - Jointly controlled entities

As at March 31, 2017 As at March 31, 2016 As at April 01, 2015
Al Tawleed For Energy & Power Company Kingdom of Saudi Arabia 30 30 30
TEIL Projects Limited India 50 50 50

- Artson Engineering Limited
- TPL-TQA Quality Services (Mauritius) Pty Limited
- TPL-TQA Quality Services South Africa (Pty) Limited
- Ujjwal Pune Limited (formerly Tata Projects Infrastructure Limited)
- Industrial Quality Services LLC
- Ind Project Engineering (Shanghai) Co Ltd
- TQ Cert Private Limited (formerly Food Cert India Private Limited)

- TQ Services Europe GmbH
- Al Tawleed for Energy and Power Company.
- TEIL Projects Limited

The group’s associate is:-

Country of incorporation

As at March 31, 2017 As at March 31, 2016 As at April 01, 2015
Virendra Garments Manufacturers Private Limited India 24 24 24

The financial statements of the above Company is not available and hence has not been considered for consolidation
 3.3.1 Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing subsidiaries

3.3.2  Goodwill

3.3.3  Investments in associates and Joint Ventures

Percentage holding

Name of the Company
Percentage of ownership interest

The financial statements of Al Tawleed for Energy and Power Company considered based on management accounts drawn for the period from January 1, 2016 to December 31,
2016. The Company is under liquidation. Al-Tawleed being joint venture, is consolidated on equity method as per Ind AS. No profit is recognised through consolidation, as the
accumulated losses in the Joint Venture exceeds the capital contribution of the Company
The financial statements of TEIL Projects Limited, is based on audited accounts, and is consolidated on equity method as per Ind AS. As the Joint Venture is under liquidation, the
profit earned during the year by the Joint Venture is not recognised for consolidation.

Name of the Joint venture Country of incorporation

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying
amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Goodwill
arising on consolidation is not amortised but tested for impairment.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the associate or joint venture are recognised in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in the associate or joint venture that are not related to the Grou

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for using the equity method from the date on which the investee becomes an associate or a joint venture. On acquisition
of the investment in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised directly in equity as capital reserve in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting, 

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable Ind AS). The fair value of
any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under Ind AS 109, or,
when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.

The consolidation of the following subsidiary/ joint venture has been done on the basis of audited financial statements

The consolidation of the following subsidiary/ joint venture has been done on the basis of  unaudited financial statements certified by Managemen
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
Tata Projects Limited

3.4 Estimates

3.5 Revenue Recognition

3.6 Unbilled Revenues

3.7 Foreign Currencies

3.8 Employee Benefits
Employee benefits include provident fund, superannuation fund, gratuity fund, compensated absences and post retirement medical benefits.

Defined contribution plans

Defined benefit plans

(ii) Revenue from sale of goods is recognized on dispatch of goods and on transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership to the buyer, which generally coincides with the
delivery of goods to customers. Sales include excise duty and other indirect taxes but exclude indirect taxes collected from customers.
(iii) Income from services rendered is recognised based on the agreements/arrangements with the concerned parties and when the services are rendered. 
(iv) Other Income - Interest income is accounted on accrual basis. Dividend income is accounted for when the right to receive is established.

Unbilled revenue represents value of work executed, billed subsequent to balance sheet date and is valued at contract price

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction. Foreign currency monetary items outstanding at the balance sheet date are
restated at the prevailing year end rates. The resultant gain / loss upon such restatement along with gain / loss on account of foreign currency transactions are accounted in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

For the purpose of recognising revenue, contract revenue comprises the initial amount of revenue agreed in the contract, the variations in contract work, claims and incentive
payments to the extent that it is probable they will result in revenue and they are capable of being reliably measured.
The percentage of completion method is applied on a cumulative basis in each accounting year to the current estimates of contact revenue and contract costs. The effect of a change
in the estimate of the outcome of a contract is accounted for as a change in accounting estimates and the effect of which are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the year
in which the change is made and in subsequent years.
When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract costs incurred of which recovery is probable and the
related contract costs are recognised as an expense in the year in which they are incurred.
When it is probable that the total contract cost will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in
which such probability occurs.
No profit is recognized till a minimum of 10% progress is achieved on the contract, except in case of Tata Aldesa (JV), jointly controlled operation, in respect of which no profit is
recognised till a minimum of 2.5% progress is achieved on the project. The cost incurred and invoices raised in respect of such contracts are included in Contract execution
expenses and Revenue from operations in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and
assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. Application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates involving complex
and subjective judgments and the use of assumptions in these financial statements have been disclosed. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in
estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

(i) Income from Construction Contracts

When the outcome of a construction contract can be measured reliably, contract revenue and contract costs associated with the construction contract are recognised as revenue and
expenses respectively by reference to the percentage of completion of the contact activity at the reporting date. The stage of completion is determined on the basis of actual work
executed during the year, which is billable to the customer.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end o
each annual reporting period. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets
(excluding net interest), is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.
Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in
profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset.
Defined benefit costs are categorized as follows:
(i) service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and settlements);
(ii) net interest expense or income; and 
(iii) remeasurement

The Group presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item ‘Employee benefits expense’. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as
past service costs.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the Balance Sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus in the Group's defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this
calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits available in the form reductions in future contributions to the plans

Forward exchange contracts are fair valued to Mark to Market ("MTM") at every reporting date till the date of settlement. MTM variances are accounted through Profit and Loss
account which are finally written off or written back as the case may be on settlement.

In respect of financial statements of integral foreign operations of foreign branches, fixed assets are recorded at cost, based on the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the
transaction. Current assets and current liabilities are reported using the exchange rates on the date of balance sheet, income and expenses are translated at the monthly average
rates of exchange. The resultant exchange gains / losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Group's contribution to provident fund and superannuation fund, considered as defined contribution plans are charged as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss based
on the amount of contribution required to be made and when services are rendered by the employees.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
Tata Projects Limited

Short term employee benefits

Other long term employee benefits

3.9 Earnings Per Share 

3.10 Leasing

3.11 Taxation

3.11.1 Current tax

3.11.2 Deferred tax

Depreciation and amortisation, impairment

Scaffolding materials 5 years
Wire ropes and slings 2 years
Computer including software 3 years
Motor cars under car policy for executives 4 years
Tunnel Formwork equipment 2 years 2 months
Leasehold improvements are amortized over the duration of the lease.

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation / amortization and impairment losses, if any. The cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and other attributable expenditure incurred in making the asset ready for its intended use and interest on borrowings attributable to acquisition of qualifying property,
plant and equipment up to the date the asset is ready for its intended use.

Property, plant and equipment retired from active use and held for sale are stated at the lower of their net book value and net realisable value and are disclosed separately.
Intangible Assets:
Intangible assets comprises of the application and other software procured through perpetual licences. The intangible assets are capitalised on implementation of such software and
comprises of the prices paid for procuring the licence and implementation cost of such software.

Depreciation has been provided on the written down value method as per the useful life as prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 except in respect of following
assets, in whose case, life of the assets has been assessed as under, based on technical advice, taking into account the nature of asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the
operating conditions of the asset etc. 

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax represents tax currently payable based on taxable profit for the year determined in accordance with the provisions of the Income tax Act, 1961. Taxable profit differs from
‘profit before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

Current and deferred tax for the year
Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the business combination.
3.12. Property plant and equipment & Intangible Assets

Provision for pension and medical benefits payable to retired Managing Directors is made on the basis of an actuarial valuation as at the Balance Sheet date. 

Other Long term employee benefit comprise of Leave encashment which is provided for based on the actuarial valuation carried out as at the end of the year.
Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date.

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) data for its equity shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group's significant leasing arrangements are in respect of operating leases for premises that are cancellable in nature. The lease rentals under such agreements are recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss as per the terms of the lease. 

Rental expense from operating leases is generally recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line
with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases, such increases are recognised in the year in which such benefits accrue. 

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.
Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
Tata Projects Limited

Assets costing less than   10,000 are fully depreciated in the year of capitalization.

3.15 Financial Instruments

Impairment of Financial Assets

3.16 Jointly controlled operations

When it is probable at any stage of the contract, that the total cost will exceed the total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised immediately

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

(i) Financial assets carried at amortised cost :-- A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the
asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

(ii) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income :-- Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial
assets are held within a business whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows that give rise on specified dates to solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding and by selling financial assets. 

The Group has made an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value of equity investments not held for trading. 

(iii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or losss :- Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are immediately recognised in profit or loss. 

(iv) Financial liabilities :-- Financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

(v) Investment in subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associatess :- On initial recognition, these investments are recognized at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction
cost. Subsequently, they are measured at cost. 

The Group applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost, trade receivables, other contractual rights to
receive cash or other financial asset. 

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18, the Group
always measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the Group has used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. This
expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information.

The accounts of the Group reflect its share of the Assets, Liabilities, Income and Expenditure of the jointly controlled operations which are accounted on the basis of the audited
accounts of the joint ventures on line-by-line basis with similar items in the Company’s accounts to the extent of the participating interest of the Company as per the Joint Venture
Agreements.

Raw materials are valued at lower of cost, ascertained on "weighted average" method and net realisable value.
Finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realisable values. Cost comprises, material and applicable manufacturing overheads and excise duty.
Stores and spares are valued at cost or below on weighted average basis.
3.14 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised only when there is a present obligation as a result of past events and when a reasonable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made. The amount
recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of
those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

Contingent liabilities are disclosed for (i) possible obligation which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Group or (ii) present obligations arising
from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.
Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements.

All property, plant and equipment are tested for impairment at the end of each financial year. The impairment loss being the excess of carrying value over the recoverable value of
the assets, if any, is charged to the statement of Profit and Loss in the respective financial year. The impairment loss recognized in prior years is reversed in cases where the
recoverable value exceeds the carrying value, upon reassessment in the subsequent years.

3.13 Inventories

The assets owned by jointly controlled operations (JCO), are depreciated over the duration of the project
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3.17 Segment reporting

3.18 Operating cycle

The Group, based on the "Management Approach" as defined in Ind AS 108, evaluates the Group's performance and allocates resources based on the analysis of various
performance indicators by business segments and geographic segments. Accordingly, information has been presented both along business segments and geographic segments. 

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policies of the Group. Segment revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and segment
liabilities have been identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the segment.

Inter-segment revenue is accounted on the basis of transactions which are primarily determined based on market/fair value factors.
Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which relate to the Group as a whole and not allocable to segments on reasonable basis have been included under “unallocated
revenue/expenses/assets/liabilities”.

The Group's activities (primarily construction activities) have an operating cycle that exceeds a period of twelve months. The Group has selected the duration of the individual
contracts as its operating cycle, wherever appropriate, for classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.
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Tata Projects Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
All amounts are in   Lakhs unless otherwise stated

The effect of the Group’s transition to Ind AS is summarized as follows:
(i)  Transition

(iv) Reconciliation of other comprehensive income as previously reported under Indian GAAP to Ind-AS 

(i) Transition 

Particulars Note No.
Deemed cost of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 1
Investments in subsidiaries, joint controlled entities and associates in separate financial statements 2
Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities 3
Business combinations 4

Notes:

(ii) Reconciliation of equity as previously reported under Indian GAAP to Ind-AS 

Particulars Note No.
As at 

31-Mar-2016
 As at 

1-Apr-2015

Equity as reported under IGAAPP 84,060.72 78,649.26                

Proposed dividend and related distribution tax i 1,218.62 1,062.17                  
Effect of discounting of employee loans ii (1.91) (4.98)                       
Effect of discounting of rental deposits iii (13.17) -                          
Effect of transferring Minority interest share of profit relating to a subsidiary iv (46.60) -                          
Effect of change in method of consolidation in respect of Jointly Controlled Entities v 222.89 254.36                     
Deferred tax adjustments vi 3.50 -                          

Equity as reported under Ind-AS 85,444.06 79,960.81                

(iii) Reconciliation of profit or loss as previously reported under Indian GAAP to Ind-AS 

Particulars
 For the Year ended 

31-Mar -2016 

Profit as reported under IGAAP 6,422.27                  

     Increase (decrease) in net income for:
Effect of discounting of employee loans ii 3.07                        
Effect of discounting of rental deposits iii (13.17)                     
Effect of change in method of consolidation in respect of Jointly Controlled Entities v (41.34)                     
Deferred tax adjustments vi 0.73                        
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on defined benefit obligation recognised in other comprehensive 
income

vii (8.99)                       

Profit as reported under Ind AS 6,362.57                  

2. In accordance with Ind-AS transitional provisions, the Group opted to consider previous GAAP carrying value of investments as deemed cost on
transition date for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in separate financial statement.
3. The Group has applied the derecognition requirements of financial assets and financial liabilities prospectively for transactions occurring on or after
April 01, 2015 (the transition date).
4. The Group has elected not to apply Ind AS 103 Business Combinations retrospectively to business combinations that occurred before the date of
transition.

1. In accordance with Ind-AS transitional provisions, the Group opted to consider previous GAAP carrying value of property, plant and equipment,
investment property, and intangible assets as deemed cost on transition date.

3.19 Transition to Ind-AS

(ii) Reconciliation of equity as previously reported under Indian GAAP to Ind-AS 
(iii) Reconciliation of profit or loss as previously reported under Indian GAAP to Ind-AS 

The Group has prepared the opening Balance Sheet as per Ind AS as of April 01, 2015 (the transition date) by recognising all assets and liabilities
whose recognition is required by Ind AS, not recognising items of assets or liabilities which are not permitted by Ind AS, by reclassifying items from
previous GAAP to Ind AS as required under Ind AS, and applying Ind AS in measurement of recognised assets and liabilities. However, this principle is
subject to certain exceptions and certain optional exemptions availed by the Company as detailed below:
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(iv) Reconciliation of other comprehensive income as previously reported under Indian GAAP to Ind-AS 

Comprehensive income as reported under IGAAP -                          

Employee benefits – actuarial gains and losses vii 8.99                        
Deferred tax adjustments vi 2.77                        

11.76                       
Exchange differences in translating the financial statements of foreign operations 0.04                        

Comprehensive income as reported under Ind AS 11.80                       

Notes:

 Particulars  Previous 
GAAP

 Effect of 
transition to Ind 

AS

 Ind AS 

Net cash flows from operating activities 6,491.68     11.22 6,480.46                  
Net cash flows from investing activities (8,935.37) (1.58) (8,933.79)                 
Net cash flows from financing activities (290.31) (8,575.14) 8,284.83                  
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (2,734.00) (8,565.50) 5,831.50                  
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 20,404.91   26,979.44 (6,574.53)                 
Other changes 46.91         -                      46.91                       
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 17,717.82   18,413.94 (696.12)                   

vii. The Group recognises costs related to its post-employment defined benefit plan on an actuarial basis both under Indian GAAP and Ind AS. Under
Indian GAAP, the entire cost including actuarial gains and losses are charged to profit or loss. Under Ind AS, remeasurements are recognised
immediately in the Balance Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI. 

vi.  Consequential deferred tax on all the above adjustments

(v) Effect of adoption of Ind AS on the Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2016:

i. Under Indian GAAP, dividends on equity shares recommended by the Board of Directors after the end of the reporting period but before the financial
statements were approved for issue were recognised in the financial statements as a liability. Under Ind AS, such dividends along with the dividend
distribution tax thereon are recognised as a liability when declared/ approved by the members in a general meeting.

Following is the impact on cash flows on transition from Indian GAAP to Ind-AS. Cash flows relating to interest are classified in a consistent manner as
operating, investing or financing each period.

ii. Under Indian GAAP, the loans extended to employees are not fair valued. Under Ind AS, such loans are subject to fair valued on transition date and 
every subsequent disbursements. Effect of fair valuation measurements are recognised to statement of profit and loss.

iii. Under Indian GAAP, Deposits paid for rental purpose for a period more than one year are not subjected to fair valuation. Under Ind AS, such deposits 
are required for fair valuation. Effect of fair valuation measurements are recognised to statement of profit and loss.

iv. Under Indian GAAP, any loss reported in a subsidiary should not be transferred to Non controlling interest if the loss is more than their invested
capital. Any subsequent profits cannot be distributed to "Non controlling interest holders" unless the past losses are recovered. Under Ind AS, share of
Minority interest in profit and loss account is required to be transferred to "Non controlling interest" even though there is a loss reported in the Company.
During the year ending March 31, 2016, in the case of a subsidiary, Artson Engineering Limited, reported a profit and Non controlling interest share is
transferred to their account.

v. Under Indian GAAP, consolidation of joint venutre entities are accounted for using the proportionate consolidated method. Under Ind AS, as per Ind
AS 28, consolidation of joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method. Further, the entity's interest on these joint ventures have become
negative as on transition date ie., April 01, 2015. Thus, the loss over and above the investment is reversed to reserves and surplus as on transition date
and loss recognised in the year 2015-16 as per Indian GAAP was reversed as per Ind AS.
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Notes forming part of  consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

5 . Goodwill

Particulars As at 31-Mar-17 As at 31-Mar-16 As at 1-Apr-15

Cost or deemed cost
Goodwill 391.30                               391.44                               391.25                               

391.30                               391.44                               391.25                               

 For the year ended 
31-Mar-17 

 For the year ended 
31-Mar-16 

Cost or deemed cost

Balance at the beginning of the year 391.44                               391.25                               
Effect of foreign currency exchange differences (0.14)                                  0.19                                   
Balance at the end of the year 391.30                               391.44                               

All amounts are in ₹ Lakhs unless otherwise stated

Tata Projects Limited
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Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
All amounts are in ₹ Lakhs unless otherwise stated

6 .Intangible Assets

As at 31-Mar-17 As at 31-Mar-16 As at 1-Apr-15

Carrying amounts of :
Software 375.51                                953.35                                960.94                                
Goodwill 8.24                                    -                                     -                                     
Sub-total 383.75                                953.35                                960.94                                

Intangible assets under development 445.97                                429.70                                118.46                                
829.72                                1,383.05                             1,079.40                             

 Software  Goodwill  Total 

Cost or deemed cost

Balance as at April 1, 2015 960.94                                -                                      960.94                                
Addition 720.72                                -                                      720.72                                
Balance as at March 31, 2016 1,681.66                             -                                      1,681.66                             

Addition 329.45                                10.30                                  339.75                                
Balance as at March 31, 2017 2,011.11                             10.30                                  2,021.41                             

 Software  Goodwill  Total 

Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Balance as at April 1, 2015 -                                      -                                      -                                      
Amortisation expense 728.31                                -                                      728.31                                
Balance as at March 31, 2016 728.31                                -                                      728.31                                

Amortisation expense 907.29                                2.06                                    909.35                                
Balance as at March 31, 2017 1,635.60                             2.06                                    1,637.66                             

 Software  Goodwill  Total 

Carrying amount

Balance as at April 1, 2015 960.94                                -                                     960.94                                
Additions 720.72                                -                                     720.72                                
Amortisation expense (728.31)                              -                                     (728.31)                              
Balance as at March 31, 2016 953.35                                -                                     953.35                                

Additions / Acquisitions 329.45                                10.30                                  339.75                                
Amortisation expense (907.29)                              (2.06)                                  (909.35)                              
Balance as at March 31, 2017 375.51                                8.24                                    383.75                                

6.1 Significant Intangible assets

6.2

Tata Projects Limited

The Intangible assets comprise of Goodwil ,licenses held for accounting, engineering and other technical softwares. The carrying amount of these intangible assets as at
March 31, 2017 is ₹ 383.75 (ast at March 31,2016 ₹ 953.35; as at 1st April, 2015 ₹ 960.94) 

Refer note 3.19 for availment of exemption as per Ind As 101
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Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
All amounts are in ₹ Lakhs unless otherwise stated

7 . Trade receivables
IND AS IND AS

As at 31-Mar-17  As at 1-Apr-15 

Non-current
Trade Receivables

(a) Unsecured, considered good 8,119.84                      7,132.57                     4,054.41                     
(b) Doubtful 442.83                         -                              -                              

Allowance for doubtful debts (expected credit loss allowance) (442.83)                       -                              -                              
Total 8,119.84                      7,132.57                     4,054.41                     

Current
Trade Receivables

(a) Unsecured, considered good 3,31,762.29                 2,62,304.28                2,42,265.64                
(b) Doubtful 5,507.33                      7,236.69                     9,778.26                     

Allowance for doubtful debts (expected credit loss allowance) (5,507.33)                    (7,236.69)                    (9,778.26)                    
Total 3,31,762.29                 2,62,304.28                2,42,265.64                

7.1 Trade Receivables

Customers who represent more than 5% of total balance of trade receivables are as follows
As at 31-Mar-17 As at 31-Mar-16 As at 01-Apr-15

1 Power Grid Corporation of India Limited 65,079.27                   61,490.69                   58,601.34                   
2 Steel Authority Of India Limited 29,719.58                   26,401.33                   25,026.00                   
3 Andhra Pradesh Power Development Company Limited 20,537.07                   6,637.12                     31,602.87                   
4 NMDC Limited 19,254.96                   18,589.95                   17,052.92                   

Expected credit loss allowance on receivables

7.2 Movement in the expected credit loss allowance

Balance at the beginning of the year 7,236.69                     9,778.26                     
Movement in expected credit loss allowance on trade receivables (1,178.53)                    (2,541.57)                    

6,058.16                      7,236.69                      
Less:

108.00                        -                              
Balance at the end of the year 5,950.16                      7,236.69                      

Tata Projects Limited

The concentration of credit risk is low due to the fact that the customer base is large and unrelated.

Company evaluates, the financial health, market reputation, credit rating of the customer, before entering into the contract. Company's customers 
comprise of public sector undertakings as well as private entities.

 As at 31-Mar-16 

The average credit period allowed to customers is between 30 days to 60 days. The credit period is considered from the date of Invoice. Further, a
specified amount of bill is held back by the customer as retention money, which is payable as per the credit period, from the date such retention
becomes due. The retention monies held by customers become payable on completion of a specified milestone or after the Defect Liability Period of
the project, which is normally 1 year after the completion of the project, as per terms of respective contract. No Interest is payable by the customers
for the delay in payments of the amounts over due.

The company computes the Expected Credit Loss Allowance ("ECLA") by applying the percentages determined on historical basis over past 4
years, for each Business Unit and determined the percentage of such allowance over the turnover of each BU and moderated for current and
envisaged future businesses. Expected Credit Loss Allowance is determines on the closing balances of all applicable financial assets as at
each reporting date, at the average rates ranging from 0.25% to 1.50%.

Expected credit loss related to unbilled revenue and 
contractual reimburseble  expenses (Note no 8) 
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Tata Projects Limited

Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
All amounts are in ₹ Lakhs unless otherwise stated

8. Other financial assets

Ind AS Ind AS

 As at 31-Mar-17  As at 31-Mar-16  As at 1-Apr-15 
Non-Current

Security deposits
Unsecured, considered good 1,853.87                      1,269.40                       1,062.16                        
Doubtful 318.08                         318.08                          199.00                           

Provision for doubtful deposits (318.08)                       (318.08)                         (199.00)                          
1,853.87                      1,269.40                        1,062.16                        

Loans and advances to employees 6.24                             14.01                             22.86                             
Advance towards share application money 44.40                           -                                 -                                 
In deposit accounts with original maturity for more than 12 months 25.00                           25.83                             25.83                             

Total 1,929.51                      1,309.24                        1,110.85                        

Current

Security deposits 2,320.53                      1,061.85                        510.58                           
Unbilled revenue 35,048.93                    39,013.01                      26,281.72                      
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (94.00)                         -                                 -                                 

34,954.93                    39,013.01                      26,281.72                      

Inter corporate deposits 353.60                         -                                 -                                 
Receivable from joint venture partners 3,361.98                      4,074.16                        2,524.97                        
Contractual reimbursable expenses 2,373.45                      616.54                           1,287.53                        
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (14.00)                         -                                 -                                 

2,359.45                      616.54                           1,287.53                        
Insurance and other claims receivable

Unsecured, considered good 41.62                           30.06                             15.07                             
Doubtful 73.25                           73.25                             73.25                             

114.87                         103.31                           88.32                             
Less: Provision for doubtful claims (73.25)                         (73.25)                           (73.25)                            

41.62                           30.06                             15.07                             
Interest accruals
(i) Interest acrued on deposits 49.91                           41.46                             28.37                             
(ii) Interest accrued on mobilisation advance given 60.49                           81.06                             342.39                           

110.40                         122.52                           370.76                           
Others 7.32                             -                                 -                                 

Total 43,509.83                    44,918.14                      30,990.63                      
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Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
All amounts are in ₹ Lakhs unless otherwise stated

9.  Deferred tax assets (net)

 As at 
31-Mar-17 

 As at 
31-Mar-16 

 As at 
1-Apr-15 

Deferred tax assets 9,732.70                                                                            6,555.22                               5,943.91 
Deferred tax liabilities (39.39)                                                                                          -                                            -   
Total                                  9,693.31                                            6,555.22                               5,943.91 

 2016-17  Opening Balance  Recognised in Statement of 
Profit or loss 

 Recognised in other 
comprehensive Income  Closing balance 

Deferred tax (liabilities ) / assets in relation to 
Property, plant and equipment                           2,403.73 1,235.30                                                      -   3,639.03                              
Employee Benefits                           1,024.34                                       13.98                                               211.98 1,250.30                              
Allowance for doubtful debts                           2,643.00 7.12                                                      -   2,650.12                              
Disallowance under section 43B                              270.11 79.68                                                      -   349.79                                 
Carry forward losses and depreciation                                     -                                    1,647.89                                                      -   1,647.89                              
Others                              207.90                                      (19.85)                                                      -   188.05                                 
FVTPL financial assets                                  6.14                                         1.36                                                      -   7.50                                     
Deffered tax expense on undistributed profits of Subsidiaries                                     -                                        (39.39)                                                      -                                     (39.39)

                          6,555.22                                  2,926.10                                               211.98                               9,693.31 

 2015-16  Opening Balance  Recognised in Statement of 
Profit or loss 

 Recognised in other 
comprehensive Income  Closing balance 

Deferred tax (liabilities ) / assets in relation to 
Property, plant and equipment                           1,443.00                                     960.73                                                      -   2,403.73                              
Employee Benefits                              868.11                                     153.46                                                   2.77 1,024.34                              
Provisions for doubtful debts                           3,465.33                                    (822.33)                                                      -   2,643.00                              
Disallowance under section 43B                                60.70                                     209.41                                                      -   270.11                                 
Others                              104.13                                     103.77                                                      -   207.90                                 
FVTPL financial assets                                  2.64                                         3.50                                                      -   6.14                                     

                          5,943.91                                     608.54                                                   2.77                               6,555.22 

Tata Projects Limited
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Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
All amounts are in ₹ Lakhs unless otherwise stated

10. Tax assets/ liabilities (net) 
Ind AS Ind AS

 As at 
31-Mar-17 

 As at 
31-Mar-16 

 As at 
1-Apr-15 

Non-current tax assets (net)

Income  tax assets (net) 7,469.96                      4,571.62                      618.40                         

Current tax liabilities (net) 7,469.96                  4,571.62                  618.40                     

Income  tax liabilities (net) (34.87)                         -                           -                           

(34.87)                         -                              -                              

Tata Projects Limited
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Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
All amounts are in ₹ Lakhs unless otherwise stated

11 .Other assets
IND AS IND AS

 As at 31-Mar-17  As at 31-Mar-16  As at 1-Apr-15 

Non-current
Capital advances 636.17                                                     40.08 77.67                           
Others 
 - Deposits with government authorities 5,792.60                                             4,560.81 3,408.91                      
 - Prepaid expenses 509.54                                                   204.64 297.99                         

Total                      6,938.31                         4,805.53                       3,784.57 

Current
Mobilisation advances 22,463.92                                         29,781.14 28,066.79                    
Others
- Balances with governement authorities

CENVAT credit receivable 104.17                                                     12.23 12.11                           
VAT credit receivable 2,831.59                                             1,603.69 1,165.26                      
Sales tax deducted at source 14,887.94                                         12,909.88 9,250.95                      
Service tax credit receivable 4.39                                                       243.20 -                               
Customs duty refund receivable -                                                          12.39 178.13                         

- Loans and advances to employees 63.79                                                       97.32 178.31                         
- Prepaid expenses 1,300.62                                             1,202.78 1,128.11                      
 - Inter corporate deposits -                                                   17,000.00 17,000.00                    
 - Project related advances 

Unsecured, considered good 31,335.16                                         20,825.38 22,501.27                    
Doubtful 891.37                                                   608.00 608.00                         

32,226.53                   21,433.38                      23,109.27                    
Less: Provision for doubtful advances (891.37)                      (608.00)                         (608.00)                        

31,335.16                   20,825.38                      22,501.27                    
- others 7.36                            -                                 -                               

Total                    72,998.94                       83,688.01                     79,480.93 

Tata Projects Limited
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Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

All amounts are in ₹ Lakhs unless otherwise stated

15 .Equity Share Capital

 As at 31-Mar-17  As at 31-Mar-16  As at 1-Apr-15 

Authorised share capital

2,500.00                                   2,500.00                   2,500.00 

Issued ,subscribed and paid-up

2,025.00                                    2,025.00                   2,025.00 
                      2,025.00               2,025.00                   2,025.00 

Notes:

(i) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Equity shares with voting rights
Number of shares 

in '000s

2,025                      
                          -   

2,025                      
                          -   

2,025                      

(ii) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to the equity shares

(iii) Shareholders holding more than 5% of the equity shares

Number of 

shares %

Number of 

shares %

Equity shares of ₹ 100 each with voting rights

The Tata Power Company Limited 9,67,500          47.78 9,67,500             47.78
Omega TC Holdings Pte Limited 4,88,440          24.12 4,88,440             24.12
Tata Chemicals Limited 1,93,500          9.56 1,93,500             9.56
Tata Sons Limited 1,35,000          6.67 1,35,000             6.67
Voltas Limited 1,35,000          6.67 1,35,000             6.67

Number of 

shares %

The Tata Power Company Limited 9,67,500             47.78
Tata Steel Limited 2,18,250             10.78
Tata Chemicals Limited 1,93,500             9.56
Tata Sons Limited 1,35,000             6.67
Voltas Limited 1,35,000             6.67
Tata Motors Limited 1,35,000             6.67

Tata Projects Limited

Equity shares of ₹ 100 each with voting rights

Balance as at April 1 , 2015
Changes during the year
Balance as at March 31 , 2016
Changes during the year
Balance as at March 31, 2017

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ₹ 100 each per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.
The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of
liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts.
The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

As at 

March 31, 2017
As at

March 31, 2016

As at

April 01, 2015

Equity shares of ₹ 100 each with voting rights
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Tata Projects Limited

Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

All amounts are in ₹ Lakhs unless otherwise stated

16.  Other equity IND AS IND AS
As at 

31-Mar-17

As at 

31-Mar-16

As at 

1-Apr-15

General reserve 29,042.70                               19,749.20                              14,791.25                       
Securities premium reserve 4,987.50                                 4,987.50                                4,987.50                         
Foreign currency translation reserve (199.48)                                   (168.34)                                  (168.38)                           
Retained earnings                                 62,734.14 60,814.28                              60,280.43                       
Capital reserve on consolidation                                        65.92 61.42                                     70.01                              
Legal reserve                                          3.95 -                                         -                                  

96,634.73                               85,444.06                              79,960.81                        

85,444.06                              79,960.81                        
-                                         -                                  

16.1 General reserve
Year ended

31-Mar-17

Year ended

31-Mar-16
Year ended 31-Mar-15

Balance at the beginning of the year 19,749.20                               14,791.25                              13,854.29                        
Movements duing the year 9,293.50                                 4,957.95                                936.96                             
Balance at the end of the year 29,042.70                               19,749.20                              14,791.25                        

16.2 Securities premium reserve
Year ended

31-Mar-17

Year ended

31-Mar-16
Year ended 31-Mar-15

Balance at the beginning of the year 4,987.50                                 4,987.50                                4,987.50                          
Movements duing the year                                              -   -                                         -                                  
Balance at the end of the year 4,987.50                                 4,987.50                                4,987.50                          

16.3 Foreign currency translation reserve
Year ended

31-Mar-17

Year ended

31-Mar-16
Year ended 31-Mar-15

Balance at the beginning of the year (168.34)                                   (168.38)                                  (51.00)                             
Exchange differences arising on translating the foreign operations (31.14)                                     0.04                                       (117.38)                           
Balance at the end of the year (199.48)                                   (168.34)                                  (168.38)                           

Ind AS Ind AS

16.4 Retained earnings
Year ended

31-Mar-17

Year ended

31-Mar-16
Year ended 31-Mar-15

Balance at the beginning of the year 60,814.28                               60,280.43                              52,857.10                       
Profit attributable to owners of the Company                                 12,835.58 6,555.21                                8,360.29                         
Other comprehensive income arising from remeasurement of defined benefit obligation net of income tax (399.65)                                   7.53                                       -                                  
Payment of dividends on equity shares # (1,012.50)                                (1,012.50)                               -                                  
Tax on dividend * (206.12)                                   (58.44)                                    -                                  
Transfer to general reserve (9,293.50)                                (4,957.95)                               (936.96)                           
Transfer to legal reserve (3.95)                                       -                                         -                                  
Balance at the end of the year 62,734.14                               60,814.28                              60,280.43                        

16.5 Capital Reserve
Year ended

31-Mar-17

Year ended

31-Mar-16

Balance at the beginning of the year 61.42                                      70.01                                     
Movement during the year 4.50                                        (8.59)                                      70.01                               
Balance at the end of the year 65.92                                      61.42                                     70.01                               

16.6 Legal Reserve
Year ended

31-Mar-17

Year ended

31-Mar-16

Balance at the beginning of the year -                                          -                                         
Movement during the year 3.95                                        
Balance at the end of the year 3.95                                        -                                         

#

* Tax on dividend has been computed after considering the credit taken for dividend aggregating ₹ Nil (March 31, 2015 ₹ 725.48 lakhs received) from foreign subsidiaries TPL-TQA Quality Services (Mauritius)Pty Limited - ₹ Nil
(March 31, 2015 ₹ 255.70 lakhs) and TPL-TQA Quality Services South Africa Pty Limited - ₹ Nil (March 31, 2015 ₹ 469.78 lakhs) in respect of which income tax amounting to ₹ Nil (March 31, 2015 ₹ 123.30 lakhs) has been
provided and included in current tax.

On July 01, 2016, a dividend of ₹ 50 per share (total dividend of ₹ 1,012.50 lakhs) was paid to holders of fully paid equity shares. On August 07, 2015, the dividend paid was ₹ 50 per share (total dividend ₹ 1,012.50 lakhs).

The general reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. As the general reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of other
comprehensive income, items included in the general reserve will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss.

Legal reserve is created by Industrial Quality Services LLC (Subsidiary) appropriating 10% of the net profit for the year as required by Article 154 of the commercial companies law of Oman 1974.The company may resolve to
discontinue such annual transfers when the reserve totals 33.33% of the paidup share capital .The reserve is not available for distribution

Exchange differences relating to the translation of the results and net assets of the group's foreign operations from their functional currencies to the group's presentation currency (i.e. ₹) are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve. Gains and losses on derivatives that are designated as hedging instruments for hedges of net investments in foreign operations are included in
foreign currency translation reserve. Exchange differences previously accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve (in respect of translating both the net assets of foreign operations and hedges of foreign operations)are
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the foreign operation
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17. Non-Controlling interests

 Year ended 

31-Mar-17 

 Year ended 

31-Mar-16 

 Year ended 

1-Apr-15 

Balance at beginning of the year                 262.18                 338.49                       -   
Share of profit for the year                 711.78               (188.40)                       -   
Non-controlling interests arising on the acquisition of a subsidiary                         -                   128.88               338.49 
Dividend paid during the year                 (10.41)                         -                         -   
Effect of exchange fluctuation in opening Minority interest                   (3.52)                 (30.15)
Effect of exchange fluctuation in profit for the year                     1.54                   13.36 
Balance at end of the  year                 961.57                 262.18               338.49 

 Details 

Name of subsidiary

 Place of 

incorporation and 

principal place of 

business 

 As at            

31-Mar-17 

 As at            

31-Mar-16 

 As at            

1-Apr-15 

 As at            

31-Mar-17 

 As at           

31-Mar-16 

 As at           

31-Mar-17 

 As at           

31-Mar-16 

 As at           

1-Apr-15 

Artson Engineering Limited  India 25% 25% 25%                 679.49                 46.60               726.09                 46.60     - 
TPL-TQA Quality Services (Mauritius) Pty Limited Mauritius 30% 30% 30%                 (26.74)                 (1.98)                 10.12                 49.72                 46.02 

TPL-TQA Quality Services South Africa (Pty) Limited  South Africa 40% 40% 40%                   41.62             (230.34)                 84.77                 39.71               292.47 

Industrial Quality services LLC Oman 30% 30%     -                   17.41                 (2.68)               140.59               126.15     - 

Total 711.78               (188.40)            961.57              262.18              338.49              

Tata Projects Limited

 Profit / (Loss) allocated to non-

controlling interests 
 Accumulated non-controllling interests 

 Proportion of ownership rights and voting rights 

held by non-controlling interests 
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18. Non-current borrowings

 As at 31-Mar-17  As at 31-Mar-16  As at 1-Apr-15 

Unsecured - at amortised cost

(i) Term Loans
From banks                            13.88                          22.64                          34.37 

                             5.52                            6.85                            8.31 
                             8.36                          15.79                          26.06 

Secured - at amortised cost

(ii) Term Loans
From banks                       2,772.17 -                           -                           
From others                              8.04                            8.04                            8.04 

                             8.04                            8.04                            8.04 
2,772.17                     -                           -                           

Total non-current borrowings                       2,780.53                          15.79                          26.06 

Note:

Term loan of Artson Engineering Limited amounting to  ₹ 1,502.17 lakhs is Secured against all movable and immovable property and all title deed of the property
Term loan of Ujjwal Pune Limited amounting to  ₹ 1,270.00 lakhs carries an interest of Rs 8.80%p.a which was drawn till March 31,2017 out of total sanction limit of ₹ 7,750.00 lakhs

Year Loan Repay

FY 19-20                                                                                                                 950.00 
FY 20-21                                                                                                                 700.00 
FY 21-22                                                                                                                 900.00 
FY 22-23                                                                                                                 900.00 
FY 23-24                                                                                                              1,075.00 
FY 24-25                                                                                                              1,075.00 
FY 25-26                                                                                                              1,075.00 
FY 26-27                                                                                                              1,075.00 

Tata Projects Limited

Term loan from banks are repayable in equal periodic instalments for a 10 year period from the date of availment of respective loan and carry an interest of 12% p.a.

Less:Current maturities of borrowings disclosed under Note 20 - Other financial liabilities

Repayment schedule  (Ujjwal Pune Limited)- Quarterly Repayment shall begin from 90th day from end of moratorium period of 2 years

Less:Current maturities of borrowings disclosed under Note 20 - Other financial liabilities
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24. Revenue from Operations

Ind AS

1p10(a)  Year ended           

31-Mar-17 

 Year ended           

31-Mar-16 

(a)                  5,87,814.50 4,20,728.82                
(b)                     15,888.00 13,801.68                   
(c)                       1,195.73 2,714.86                     
(d) Share of profit from Joint Venture                            54.36 2,644.79                     
(e) Other operating revenues (refer note (iv) below)                          803.54 921.97                        

Total 6,05,756.13                4,40,812.12                

4,40,812.12                 

Notes:
(i) Income from contracts comprises :

- Supply of contract equipment and materials                  2,37,922.61 1,70,902.85                
- Civil and erection works                  3,49,891.89 2,49,825.97                

5,87,814.50                4,20,728.82                

(ii) Income from services comprises :
- Quality inspection services                     15,888.00 13,779.55                   
- Manpower services                                 -   22.13                          

15,888.00                   13,801.68                   

(iii) Income from sale of goods comprises :
- Sale of BWRO units                       1,195.73 1,182.03                     
- Sale of pressure vessels and air receivers                                 -   1,532.83                     

1,195.73                     2,714.86                     

(iv) Other operating revenues comprises :
- Sale of scrap                          643.95 909.67                        
- Duty drawback                          159.59 12.30                          

803.54                        921.97                        

Income from contracts (refer note (i) below)

Tata Projects Limited

Income from services (refer note (ii) below)
Income from sale of goods (refer note (iii) below)
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25. Other Income 

Ind AS

 Year ended           

31-Mar-17 

 Year ended          

31-Mar-16 

a) Interest Income 

571.00                         -                            
Bank deposits at amortised cost 417.56                         52.87                         
Other financial assets carried at amortised cost 70.63                           699.55                       
Others -                              1.56                           

Total 1,059.19                      753.98                       

b) Other non-operating income (net of expenses directly attributable to such income)

Interest on mobilisation advances given 71.39                           582.71                       
Interest on Inter corporate deposits 2.25                             -                            
Hire charges 143.34                         372.82                       
Liabilities/provisions no longer required written back 714.64                         -                            
Interest on Income tax refund 31.55                           -                            
Miscellaneous Income 162.86                         318.51                       

Total 1,126.03                      1,274.04                    

c) Other gains and losses

Net foreign exchange gains 741.56                         1,530.11                    
Total 741.56                         1,530.11                    

Total 2,926.78                      3,558.13                    

Interest income earned on financial assets 

Tata Projects Limited

130



131



132



Tata Projects Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended  March 31, 2017

All amounts are in ₹ Lakhs unless otherwise stated

32. Income taxes relating to continuing operations

32.1  Income taxes recognised in profit and loss

 Year ended   

31-Mar-17 

 Year ended 

31-Mar-16 

Current tax

In respect of the current year 8,030.61          5,297.51      
In respect of the previous years 15.80               -               

8,046.41          5,297.51      

Deferred tax

In respect of the current year (2,911.34)        (621.47)       
(2,911.34)        (621.47)       

 Total income tax expense recognised in the current yearrelating to continuing operations 5,135.07          4,676.04      

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

 Year ended   

31-Mar-17 

 Year ended 

31-Mar-16 

Profit before tax from continuing operations 18,682.27        11,038.61    

Income tax expense calculated 6,792.29          3,657.77      
Effect of Income Tax that is exempt from taxation (248.12)           (249.29)       
Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 950.21             697.60         
Effect of different tax rates in another class of income 4.50                 9.25             
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating in other jurisdictions (250.18)           (39.34)         
Effect of deferred tax on carryforward business loss in a subsidiary (2,164.76)        -              
Effect of deferred tax on undistributed profits in susbsidiaries 39.39               -               
Effect of Income tax on unrecognised Income -                  588.34         
Others -                  11.72           

5,123.33          4,676.04      

Adjustments recognised in the current year in relation to the current tax of previous years 11.74              -               

Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss (relating to continuing operations) 5,135.07          4,676.04      

32.2 Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income

Deferred  tax

Remeasurements of defined benefit obligation              211.98              2.77 
Total income tax recognised in other comprehensive income 211.98             2.77             

Bifurcation of  the income tax recognised in other comprehensive income into:
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss              211.98              2.77 

211.98             2.77             

The tax rate used for the years 2016-2017 and 2015-2016 reconciliations above is the coporate tax rate of 34.608% 
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Note 33 Additional information to the financial statements 

As at
31-Mar-17

As at
31-Mar-16

As at
01-Apr-15

 . in lakhs  . in lakhs  . in lakhs
33.1 Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)

(i)  Contingent liabilities:
(a) Claim against the Company not acknowledged as debt

Matters under dispute:
Sales tax / VAT 5,143.84                               6,289.49                   6,087.21                      
Service tax * 57,645.16                             23,908.13                 13,229.83                    
Income tax 74.62                                    609.97                      746.69                         

Third party claims from disputes relating to contracts 3,099.35                               1,167.18                   1,143.00                      
* Exclude interest amount

(b) Guarantees
765,948.23                           529,279.99                431,176.92                  

64,950.00                             37,187.99                 12,651.23                    
(c) Others - liquidated damages  Amounts 

indeterminate 
Amounts 

indeterminate 
 Amounts 

indeterminate 

Notes:
1

2

  in lakhs
(i) Tata Aldesa (JV)                           75,196.24 (March 31, 2016: � 50,279.80 lakhs; March 31, 2015: � 54,928.35 lakhs)
(ii) Tata Projects Balfour Beatty JV                                    1.00 (March 31, 2016: � 1.00 lakhs; March 31, 2015: � 1.00 lakhs)
(iii) Tata Projects Limited VNR JV Pkg 1                                969.86 (March 31, 2016: � 969.86 lakhs; March 31, 2015: � 2,719.86 lakhs)

(iv) Tata Projects Limited VNR JV Pkg 2                             2,014.02 (March 31, 2016: � 2,013.11 lakhs; March 31, 2015: 2,748.69 lakhs)
(v) GYT TPL                           11,780.77 (March 31, 2016: � 14,272.40 lakhs; March 31, 2015: � 10,988.01 lakhs)
(vi) Express Freight Consortium                           43,906.05 (March 31, 2016: � 21,289.93 lakhs; March 31, 2015: � Nil)
(vii) Sibmost- TPL                             4,977.07 (March 31, 2016: � Nil; March 31, 2015: � Nil)
(viii) TPL SUCG Consortium                           17,897.08 (March 31, 2016: � Nil; March 31, 2015: � Nil)
(ix) GULERMAK-TPL                             9,838.20 (March 31, 2016: � Nil; March 31, 2015: � Nil)
(x) GIL-TPL JV                           23,063.98 (March 31, 2016: � Nil; March 31, 2015: � Nil)
(xi) TPL-HGIEPL JV                             4,705.00 (March 31, 2016: � Nil; March 31, 2015: � Nil)
(xii) CCECC-TPL- JV                             1,189.71 (March 31, 2016: � Nil; March 31, 2015: � Nil)
(xiii) CEC-ITD Cem-TPL Joint Venture                           12,735.45 (March 31, 2016: � Nil; March 31, 2015: � Nil)
(xiv) Chint Electric & TPL                             3,509.92 (March 31, 2016: � Nil; March 31, 2015: � Nil)
(xv) TPL-TEDA Consortium                             3,279.15 (March 31, 2016: � Nil; March 31, 2015: � Nil)
(xvi) ANGELIQUE - TPL JV                                674.53 (March 31, 2016: � Nil; March 31, 2015: � Nil)
(xvii) AnTaCs Consortium                             1,753.04 (March 31, 2016: � Nil; March 31, 2015: � Nil)
(xviii) CICO-TPL Joint Venture                             3,533.08 (March 31, 2016: � Nil; March 31, 2015: � Nil)
(xix) CYMI-TPL JV                                486.44 (March 31, 2016: � Nil; March 31, 2015: � Nil)
(xx) PGCIL-TPL JV                                389.15 (March 31, 2016: � Nil; March 31, 2015: � Nil)
(xxi) GMR-Kalindee - JV                             1,106.96 (March 31, 2016: � Nil; March 31, 2015: � Nil)
(xxii) Tata Projects - Kalindee (JV)                             4,781.73 (March 31, 2016: � Nil; March 31, 2015: � Nil)
(xxiii)TATA PROJECTS LIMITED.M/s. Jyoti Bildtech 
Pvt.Ltd. (JV)

                            4,888.87 (March 31, 2016: � Nil; March 31, 2015: � Nil)

                        232,677.30 

(ii)  Commitments
                                5,578.46                        420.34 393.32Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and 

not provided for [net of advance � 636.17  lakhs (March 31, 2016 : � 40.08 lakhs; 
April 01, 2015: � 77.67 lakhs)]

Performance and other bank guarantees issued by banks on behalf of the 
Company (refer Note 2 below)
Corporate guarantees (refer Note 1,2 below)

Includes � 2,32,112.85 lakhs (March 31, 2016: � 88,826.10 lakhs; April 01, 2015: � 71,385.90 lakhs) given on behalf of the following jointly
controlled operations.

Future cash outflows in respect of the matters in (a) above are determinable only on receipt of judgements/decisions pending at various forums/authorities

Includes Corporate guarantees of � 3,674.73 lakhs (March 31, 2016 : � 3,300 lakhs; April 01, 2015: � 3,400 lakhs) given on behalf of its subsidiary, Artson
Engineering Limited and remaining outstanding as on March 31, 2017. The amount of loan outstanding against such guarantees given is � 1,825.27 lakhs (March
31, 2016 : � 2,200 lakhs; April 01, 2015: � 2,200 lakhs).
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33.2

For the year ended 
March 31, 2017

For the year ended 
March 31, 2016

For the year ended 
March 31, 2015

  in lakhs   in lakhs   in lakhs

Contract revenue recognised during the year                 587,888.37                     420,728.82                 329,295.09 

             2,969,922.73                  2,446,726.75 2,163,239.10             

Advances received for contracts-in-progress                 193,462.40                     108,353.01 101,353.11                

Retention money for contracts-in-progress                 147,476.86                     123,921.06 128,902.67                

Gross amount due from customers for contract work                 155,752.61                     111,082.58 91,043.70                  

33.3

33.4

33.5

Disclosures required to be made under Ind AS -11 Construction Contracts

In line with accepted practice in construction business, certain revision to costs and billing of previous years which have crystallised during the year have
been dealt with in the period. The Statement of Profit and Loss for the year includes debits (net) aggregating � 11,383.64 lakhs [March 31, 2016 : �
11,761.22 lakhs - debits (net); March 31, 2015 : � 9,933.03 lakhs - debits (net)] on account of changes in estimates.

Aggregate of contract costs incurred and recognised profits (less recognized
losses) upto the reporting date

Note 11 - Other non current assets includes � 610.00 lakhs (March 31, 2016: � 610.00 lakhs; March 31, 2015: � 610.00 lakhs) on account of taxes
deducted at source on inter state supplies under applicable Value Added Tax Acts. The Company has contested the deduction in the applicable judicial
forum and is confident of a favourable outcome in the matter.

During the year, Artson Engineering Limited (subsidiary company) has achieved positive cashflows during last two years and based on projected cash
flows for next 3 years, concluded that there is a reasonable certainty that the Company will have sufficient future taxable income to recover the deferred
tax asset arising out of unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward losses. Accordingly, the subsidiary company has recognised deferred tax assets of �
2,164.76 lakhs during the year ended March 31, 2017.
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33.6 Segment Information
 

(i) EPC
(ii) Services
(iii) Others 

and geographic segments of the group are: 
(i) Domestic
(ii) Overseas

 Reporting for business segment is on the following basis: 

For the purpose of monitoring segment performance and allocating resources between segments

Group operates through 6 business units – EPC, Transmission & Distribution, Transportation, Construction & Environment, Urban Infrastructure
and Quality services and provides turnkey end to end project implementing services in these verticals. The projects are executed both in India
and abroad. Based on the "Management Approach" as defined in Ind AS 108, the Group evaluates the group's performance and allocates
resources based on the analysis of various performance indicators by business segments and geographic segments. Accordingly, information
has been presented both along business segments and geographic segments. The accounting principles used in the preparation of the financial
statements are consistently applied to record revenue and expenditure in individual segments, and are as set out in the significant accounting
policies.  

Accordingly the business segments of the group are: 

Revenue relating to individual segment is recorded in accordance with accounting policies followed by the Group. All expenditure, which is
directly attributable to a project, is charged to the project and included in the respective segment to which the project related. The costs which
cannot be reasonably attributable to any project and are in the nature of general administrative overheads are shown as unallocable expenses. 

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the group's accounting policies described in note 3.17. Segement profit
represents the profit before tax earned by each segment without allocation of central administration costs and directors' salaries, share of profit of
joint ventures, other income, as well as finance costs. This is the measure reported to the chief operating decision maker for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance

Property, plant and equipment's employed in the specific project are allocated to the segment to which the project relates. The depreciation on
the corresponding assets is charged to respective segments. 

All other assets are allocated to reportable segments other than investments in associates, investments in joint ventures, other investments,
loans, other financial assets and current and deferred tax assets. 

All liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than borrowings, other financial liabilities, current and deferred tax liabilities. 
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(i) Segment revenues and results

Year ended 
31-Mar-17

Year ended 
31-Mar-16

Year ended 
31-Mar-17

Year ended 
31-Mar-16

Engineering, Procurement and Construction (EPC)                    596,534.41                   435,675.41               34,890.49                 26,392.83 
Services                      17,322.93                     14,132.31                 4,442.74                   2,703.78 
Others                        1,195.73                       1,182.03                    110.71                     (318.91)
Less : Inter segment revenue-EPC                        7,862.00                       9,824.87 
Less : Inter segment revenue-Services                        1,434.94                          352.76                           -                                -   
Total                    605,756.13                   440,812.12               39,443.94                 28,777.70 
Other income                 2,926.78                   3,558.13 
Unallocable expenses (net)             (10,987.68)                (11,574.04)
Finance costs             (12,700.77)                  (9,723.18)
Total 18,682.27              11,038.61                

(ii) Segment assets and liabilities
As at 

31-Mar-17
As at 

31-Mar-16
As at 

1-Apr-15
Segment Assets
Engineering, Procurement and Construction 621,406.99                  488,881.73            440,520.85               
Services 10,279.05                    8,017.49                6,645.11                  
Others 1,420.82                      1,115.97                1,974.88                  
Total segment assets 633,106.86                  498,015.19            449,140.84               
Unallocated 47,694.04                    35,881.29              31,386.97                
Total 680,800.90                  533,896.48            480,527.81               

Segment Liabilities
Engineering, Procurement and Construction 520,316.45                  378,943.63            340,354.64               
Services 473.13                         1,208.96                1,252.28                  
Others 478.12                         509.79                   1,211.21                  
Total segment liabilities 521,267.71                  380,662.39            342,818.13               
Unallocated 59,911.89                    65,502.86              55,385.38                
Total 581,179.60                  446,165.24            398,203.51               

(iii) Other segment information

 Year ended 
31-Mar-17

 Year ended 
31-Mar-16

 Year ended 
31-Mar-17

 Year ended 
31-Mar-16

Engineering, Procurement and Construction 7,406.33                       6,294.75                      9,278.45                6,564.75                  
Services 24.94                            17.94                           4.46                      0.96                         
Others 1.00                              1.90                            -                        -                           
Total 7,432.27                       6,314.59                      9,282.91                6,565.71                  
Unallocated 2,040.21                       2,241.66                      3,318.29                3,976.61                  
Total 9,472.48                       8,556.25                      12,601.20              10,542.32                

The following is an analysis of the Company's revenue and results from continuing operations by reportable segment
Segment Revenue Segment profit

 Depreciation and amortisation  Addition to property, plant and 
equipment
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(iv) Geographical information   

 Year ended 
31-Mar-17

 Year ended 
31-Mar-16

 As at 
31-Mar-17

 As at 
31-Mar-16

 As at
1-Apr-15

India 560,901.24                   412,201.02                  26,974.23              24,694.56                23,074.31           
Kenya 1,375.32                       2,468.40                      25.72                     38.30                       57.11                  
Zambia 1,960.01                       1,278.31                      -                        -                           -                      
United Arab Emirates 37,478.24                     20,017.30                    104.97                   89.60                       20.70                  
Korea 428.91                          651.24                         -                        -                           -                      
Ethiopia 349.15                          -                              1.77                      -                           -                      
Nepal 2,019.92                       1,826.44                      7.73                      1.07                         1.79                    
Thailand -                                -                              0.34                      -                           -                      
China 359.31                          -                              0.16                      -                           -                      
Mauritius -                                99.84                           1.57                      1.70                         1.51                    
South Africa 153.53                          192.15                         -                        -                           -                      
Germany 238.61                          203.63                         -                        -                           -                      
Oman 214.04                          -                              -                        -                           -                      
Others 277.85                          1,873.79                      -                        -                           -                      

605,756.13                   440,812.12                  27,116.49              24,825.23                23,155.42           

 Revenue from external customers 

The Company is executing projects across multiple geographies with India being country of domicile, the details of revenue and non-current assets are as follows:

 Plant, property and equipment 
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33.7 Financial Instruments
(i) Capital Management

(ii) Gearing Ratio
The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as follows.

As at As at As at 
31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 01-Apr-15

Debt 53,015.03 59,931.19       49,575.28           
Cash and bank balances 29,417.92 17,701.04       20,389.10           
Net Debt 23,597.11 42,230.15       29,186.18           
Total Equity (Share Capital + Reserves)) 98,659.73 87,469.06       81,985.82           
Net Debt to Equity ratioo 24% 48% 36%

(iii) Categories of financial instruments
As at As at As at 

31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 01-Apr-15
Non current
Trade receivables 8,119.84 7,132.57         4,054.41             
Other Financial assets 1,929.51 1,309.24         1,110.85             
Current
Trade receivables 331,762.29 262,304.28     242,265.64         
Cash and cash equivalents 29,417.92 17,701.04       20,389.10           
Loans 15,932.29 -                  -
Other financial assets 43,509.83 44,918.14       30,990.63           

430,671.68 333,365.27     298,810.63         

As at As at As at 
Financial liabilities 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 01-Apr-15
Non current
Borrowings 2,780.53 15.79              26.06
Trade payables -                  163.79            134.36
Other financial liabilities -                  13.80              13.80
Current
Borrowings 50,234.50 59,915.40       49,549.22           
Trade payables 324,888.44 268,494.58     236,807.31         
Other financial liabilities 2,477.75 2,183.30         1,671.43             

380,381.22 330,786.66     288,202.18         

(iv) Financial risk management objectives

The capital structure of the company comprises of net debt (borrowings reduced by cash and bank balances) and equity.

The Company's business model is working capital centric. The company manages its working capital needs  and long term capital expenditure, 
through a balanced mix of capital (including retained earnings) and short term debt. 

The Company's Corporate Treasury function provides services to the business, co-ordinates access to domestic  and international markets, 
monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the company through internal risk reports which analyse exposures by 
degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include market risk (including currency risk, interest rate and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity 
risk.

The company seeks to minimise the effects of these risks by using derivative financial instruments to hedge risk exposures. The use of financial 
derivatives is governed by the Company's policies approved by the board of directors, which provide written principles on foreign exchange risk, 
interest rate risk, credit risk, the use of financial instruments, and the investment of excess liquidity. Compliance with policies and exposure limits is 
reviewed by the internal auditors on a periodic basis. The Company does not enter into or trade financial instruments, including derivative financial 
instruments, for a speculative purposes.

The Corporate treasury function reports monthly to the Chief Financial Officer and quarterly to the Board of Directors, who monitor risks and 
policies implemented to mitigate risk exposures

The Company reviews its capital requirements on an annual basis, in the form of Annual Operating Plan(AOP). The AOP of the company 
aggregates the capital required for execution of projects identified and the financing mechanism of such requirements is determined as part of 
AOP.  The Company budgeted the gearing ratio for the year 2016-17 about 47%. The gearing ratio as at March 31, 2017 was 20%, was within the 
targeted gearing ratio. 

The company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.
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(v) Market risk

(vi) Foreign currency risk management

As at 
31-Mar-17

As at 
31-Mar-16

As at 
1-Apr-15

As at 
31-Mar-17

As at 
31-Mar-16

As at 
1-Apr-15

United Arab Emirates AED 11,908.61 10,450.99 10,753.56 15,358.23 13,283.60            9,469.09
Kenyan Shilling KES 2,421.95 2,905.34 3,256.95 2,855.86             4,283.40               3,090.45
South Korean Won KRW 5.26 17.08 29.22 1,192.95             1,165.70               665.45
Qatari Rial QAR 133.36 165.81 137.81 77.90                  77.90                    77.90
Euro EUR 3,252.05 1,135.58 287.21 4,735.00             4,580.69               1,141.27
South African Rand ZAR 119.39 120.75 439.34 246.54                45.95                    1,232.86
Saudi Riyal SAR 34.39               2,185.39 2,169.93 -                      1,936.88               2,006.61
Zambian Kwacha ZMW 352.61 2,559.91 4,636.95 152.69                412.26                  655.48
US Dollar USD 2,886.10 701.07 1,037.27 13,196.14 9,529.51               11,241.01
Swiss Franc CHF 5.09 5.09 4.72 -                      -                        -                  
Ethiopian Birr ETB 1,497.91 -                 -                     875.07                -                        -                  
Chinese Yuan Renminbi CNY 80.91 -                 -                     4,216.65             -                        -                  
Thai Baht THB 8.55 -                 -                     50.72                  -                        -                  
Nepalese Rupee NPR 3,054.15 364.10 1,492.16 3,975.44             931.47                  1,651.60
Japanese Yen JPY -                   -                 475.30 -                      -                        4.53
Singapore Dollar SGD -                   1.21 1.21 -                      -                        0.67
Omani Rial OMR 62.15 0.17 -                     374.65                429.60                  -                  
Kuwait Dinar KWD 0.10 -                 -                     -                      -                        -                  

(vii) Foreign currency sensitivity analysis
The above exposures when subjected to a sensitivity of 5% have the following impact:

2016-17 2015-16 As at 
1-Apr-15

United Arab Emirates AED 172.48 141.63           (64.22)
Kenyan Shilling KES 21.70 68.90             (8.33)
South Korean Won KRW 59.38 57.43             31.81
Qatari Rial QAR (2.77) (4.40) (3.00)
Euro EUR 74.15 172.26           42.70
South African Rand ZAR 6.36 (3.74) 39.68
Saudi Riyal SAR (1.72) (12.43) (8.17)
Zambian Kwacha ZMW (10.00) (107.38) (199.07)
US Dollar USD 515.50 441.42           510.19
Swiss Franc CHF (0.25) (0.25) (0.24)
Ethiopian Birr ETB (31.14) -                 -                    
Chinese Yuan Renminbi CNY 206.79 -                 -                    
Thai Baht THB 2.11 -                 -                    
Nepalese Rupee NPR 46.06 28.37             7.97
Japanese Yen JPY -                   -                 (23.54)
Singapore Dollar SGD -                   (0.06) (0.03)
Omani Rial OMR 15.63 21.47             -                    
Kuwait Dinar KWD (0.00) -                 -                    

(viii) Forward foreign exchange contracts

March 31, 2017
Less than 
1 month

1-3 months 3 months 
to 1 year

Foreign exchange forward contracts 248.47 495.47 739.05
March 31, 2016
Foreign exchange forward contracts - -                   -                 
April  01, 2015
Foreign exchange forward contracts - -                   -                 

(ix) Interest rate risk management
The Company is exposed to interest rate risk because of its borrowing funds at both fixed and floating interest rates. The risk is managed by the company by maintaining appropriate mix between fixed 
and floating rate borrowings. Company regularly swaps between conventional working capital borrowings with Commercial Paper, thus reducing the interest cost. Hedging activities are evaluated 
regularly to align with interest rate views and defined risk appetite, ensuring the most cost-effective hedging strategies are applied.

The Company's activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. The company enters into  a variety of derivative financial instruments 
to manage its exposure to foreign currency risk and interest rate risk, including:

a) forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge the exchange rate risk arising on the import of goods and services overseas

The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise. Exchange rate exposures are managed within approved policy 
parameters utilising forward foreign exchange contracts

Assets as at (  lakhs)
Description

Liabilities as at (  lakhs)
The carrying amounts of the company's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Currency

Increase in rate by 5%

Description Currency
Net exposure - Profit/(Loss)

The following tale details the Company's liquidity analysis for its derivative financial instruments. The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual net outflows on derivative
instruments that settle on a net basis.
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(x) Interest rate sensitivity analysis

(xi) Other price risks

(xii) Credit Risk Management

c) Guarantees:
Company provides guarantees, both from its line of credit and as a corporate, on behalf of it's subsidiaries, associates and Unincorporated Joint Ventures. These guarantees

are provided to customers of the said entities. While these guarantees are disclosed as contingent liabilities in the financial statements, Company does not perceive any credit
risk in respect of any of such guarantees issued.

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for non derivative instruments at the end of the reporting period, as the company 
does not transact in any derivative instruments. For floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting 
period was outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and 
represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the Company's:

a) Profit for the year ended March 31, 2017 would decrease/increase by  300 lakhs (for the year ended March 31, 2016:  298 lakhs decrease/increase by  238 lakhs). This is 
mainly attributable to Company's exposure to interest rates on its variable rate borrowings; and

b) There being no debt instrument passing through FVTOCI, there would not be any impact of such change in interest rate, on OCI.

b) Non certification of works billed
The costs incurred on projects are regularly monitored through the Project budgets. Costs which are incurred beyond the agreed terms and conditions of the contract, would
be claimed from the customer, based on the actual works performed. The realisability of such claims, is verified by independent professionals, who certify the tenability of such
claims and also the collectible amounts, by applying appropriate probabilities. Costs, which are identified as non tenable or costs beyond the collectible amounts, as
mentioned above, would be provided in the books of accounts.

The company's sensitivity to interest rates has decreased during the current year mainly due to the structure financial products negotiated by the company with the lenders 
and also due to the reduction in the prime lending rates of the lenders in general.

Company's investments in equity instruments are restricted to its investment in its subsidiaries and associates which are held for strategic purposes rather than for trading.
The Company, as on the reporting date of March 31, 2017 has 8 subsidiaries, which include companies incorporated in India and abroad. All the subsidiaries are closely held
companies and unlisted, except Artson Engineering Limited, which is listed on BSE. Company holds 75% of the stake. However the purpose of all such investments being
strategic rather than for trading, as mentioned above, the Company does not recognise any impact of sensitivity in the equity prices.

The credit risk to the company arises from three sources:

a) Customers, who default on their contractual obligations, thus resulting in financial loss to the company.
b) Non certification by the customers, either in part or in full, the works billed as per the contract, being non claimable cost as per the terms of the contract with the customer.
c) Subsidiaries, Associates or Unincorporated JVs, on whose behalf, the company has provided guarantees, both Bank and Corporate, in the event of invocation of such
guarantees by the beneficiaries.

a) Customers:
Company evaluates the credentials of a customer at a very early stage of the bid. Company has adopted a policy of 3 tier verification before participating for any bid. The first
step of such verification includes verification of customer credentials. The company, as part of verification of the customer credentials, ensures the compliance with the
following criterion,
(i) Customer's financial health by examining the audited financial statements.
(ii) Whether the Customer has achieved the financial closure for the work for which the company is bidding.
(iii) Where the customer is a private entity, the rating of the customer by a reputed agency like Dun & Bradstreet. 
(iv) Brand and market reputation of the customer.
(v) Details of other contractors working with the customer.
(v) Where the customer is Public Sector Undertaking, sanction and availability of adequate financial resources for the proposed work.

Company makes provision on it's financial assets, on every reporting period, as per Expected Credit Loss Method. The provision is made separately for each financial assets
of each business line. The percentage at which the provision is made, is determined on the basis of historical experience of such provisions, modified to the current and
prospective business and customer profile. 

Trade receivables consist of large number of customers, spread across diverse industries and geographical areas. Majority of the customers of the company comprise of
Public Sector Undertakings, with whom the company does not perceive any credit risk. As regards the customers from private sector, company carries out financial evaluation
on regular basis and provides for any amount perceived as non realisable, in the books of accounts.
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(xiii) Liquidity Risk Management

(xiv)
As at 

31-Mar-17
As at 

31-Mar-16
As at 

1-Apr-15
Unsecured bank overdraft facility, reviewed annually and payable at call:

amount used -                     19,964.25            20,837.33
amount unused 81,300.00 19,167.29            28,292.67

81,300.00 39,131.54            49,130.00
Unsecured bill acceptance facility, reviewed annually

amount used 94,985.00 45,824.24            70,482.40
amount unused 69,140.00 71,000.76            40,217.60

164,125.00 116,825.00          110,700.00
Secured bank overdraft facility:

amount used 38,006.67 39,951.15            23,711.89
amount unused 69,527.33 43,323.85            13,193.11

107,534.00 83,275.00            36,905.00
Secured bill acceptance facility, reviewed annually

amount used 719,995.00       503,638.00          377,634.35
amount unused 244,619.90 220,752.90          363,402.65

964,614.90 724,390.90          741,037.00

(xv) Fair value measurements

Carrying
amount

Fair value Carrying
amount

Fair value Carrying amount Fair value

Financial assets 
Financial assets at amortised cost:

Trade receivables
- Non Current Level2 8,119.84 8,119.84       7,132.57 7,132.57 4,054.41              4,054.41
- Current Level2 331,762.29 331,762.29   262,304.28 262,304.28 242,265.64          242,265.64
Cash and cash equivalents Level2 29,417.92 29,417.92     17,701.04 17,701.04 20,389.11            20,389.11
Loans Level2 15,932.29 15,932.29     -                    -                     -                      -                  
Other financial assets

Non Current
Security deposits Level2 1,853.87         1,853.87       1,269.40 1,269.40           1,062.16              1,062.16
Loans and advances to employees Level2 6.24 6.24              14.01 14.01 22.86                   22.86
Advance towards share application money Level2 44.40 44.40            -                    -                     -                      -                  
Deposit accounts with original maturity more 
than 12 months

Level2
25.00                25.00              25.83                  25.83                  25.83                   25.83               

Current
Security deposits Level2 2,320.53 2,320.53       1,061.85 1,061.85 510.58                 510.58
Unbilled revenue Level2 34,954.93 34,954.93     39,013.01 39,013.01 26,281.72            26,281.72
Inter corporate deposits Level2 353.60 353.60          -                    -                     -                      -                  
Receivable from joint venture partners Level2 3,361.98 3,361.98       4,074.16 4,074.16 2,524.97              2,524.97
Contractual reimbursable expenses Level2 2,359.45 2,359.45       616.54 616.54 1,287.53              1,287.53
Insurance and other claims receivable Level2 41.62 41.62            30.06 30.06 15.07                   15.07
Interest accruals Level2 110.40 110.40          122.52 122.52 370.76                 370.76
Others Level2 7.32 7.32              -                    -                     -                      -                  

Financial liabilities
Borrowings

Non current Level2 2,780.53 2780.53 15.79 15.79 26.06                   26.06
Current Level2 50,234.50 50,234.50     59,915.40 59,915.40 49,549.22            49,549.22

Trade payables
Non current Level2 -                  -                163.79 163.79 134.36                 134.36
Current Level2 324,888.46 324,888.46   268,494.58 268,494.58 236,807.31          236,807.31

Other financial liabilities
Non current Level2 -                  -                13.80 13.80 13.80                   13.80
Current

Current maturities of long-term debt Level2 13.56 13.56            14.89 14.89 16.35                   16.35
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings Level2 155.66 155.66          50.41 50.41 202.98                 202.98
Interest accrued and due on borrowings Level2 -                  -                78.50 78.50 0.96                     0.96
Interest accrued on trade payables and 
mobilisation advance received

Level2
1,770.29           1,770.29         919.36                919.36                686.28                 686.28             

Payables on purchase of property, plant and 
equipment

Level2
374.44              374.44            1,120.14             1,120.14             747.23                 747.23             

Payables to joint venture partners Level2 -                  -                -                    -                     17.63                   17.63
Others Level2 163.8 163.80          -                    -                     -                      -                  

Company being an EPC contractor, has a constant liquidity pressures to meet the project requirements. These requirements are met by a balanced mix of borrowings and project cash
flows. Cash flow forecast is made for all projects on monthly basis and the same are tracked for actual performance on daily basis. Shortfall in cashflows are matched through short term
borrowings and other strategic financing means. The daily project requirements are met by allocating the daily aggregated cashflows among the projects. Company has established
practice of prioritising the site level payments and regulatory payments above other requirements

As at 
1-Apr-15

Financing facilities

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value (but fair value disclosure are required).

Particulars

As at 
31-Mar-17

As at 
31-Mar-16
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
All amounts are in   Lakhs unless otherwise stated

33.8. Earnings per Share

For the year For the year
ended ended

31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16
a) Profit attributable to the owners of the Company 12,835.58                6,555.21                  
Basic and Diluted
b) Weighted average number of equity shares of � 100/- each outstanding during the 2,025.00                  2,025.00                  
Earnings Per Share (face value of   100/- each)
c) Basic and Diluted  – [a]/[b] – (�) 633.86                     323.71                     

Tata Projects Limited
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Tata Projects Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended  March 31 , 2017
All amounts are in   Lakhs unless otherwise stated

33.10 Employee benefit plan

Change in Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) during the year

Gratuity Pension Post retirement 
Benefits

Gratuity Pension Post retirement 
Benefits

Opening defined benefit obligations 3,275.56                345.37                  47.88                    2,952.51               337.58                    46.54                        
Current service cost 445.55                   -                        -                        392.36                  -                          -                            
Interest Cost (on DBO) 234.22                   25.50                    3.56                      212.54                  25.36                      3.52                          
Actuarial (Gains)/losses arising from changes in financial  
assumptions 257.83                    21.46                      3.32                        22.67                      2.91                        0.46                           
Actuarial (Gains)/losses arising from experience assumptions 220.42                   -                        (2.86)                     (35.47)                   -                          (2.08)                         
Exchange differences on foreign plans -                         29.26                    -                        -                        20.69                      -                            
Benefits paid (427.96)                  (44.08)                   (1.65)                     (269.03)                 (41.17)                     (0.56)                         
Closing defined benefit obligation 4,005.62 377.51 50.25 3,275.58 345.37                    47.88

Gratuity Pension Post retirement 
Benefits Gratuity Pension Post retirement 

Benefits
Opening fair value of plan assets 3,250.38                -                        -                        2,945.46               -                          -                            
Interest income (on Plan Assets) 240.36                   -                        -                        220.36                  -                          -                            
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest 
expense (83.72)                     -                          -                          10.50                      -                          -                             
Contribution from the employer 937.85                   44.08                    1.65                      341.49                  41.18                      0.56                          
Benefits paid (427.97)                  (44.08)                   (1.65)                     (269.03)                 (41.18)                     (0.56)                         
Closing fair value of plan assets 3,916.90 - - 3,248.78 -                          -

Gratuity Pension Post retirement 
Benefits

Gratuity Pension Post retirement 
Benefits

Present value of funded defined benefit obligation 4,005.62                -                        -                        3,275.58               -                          -                            
Fair value of plan assets 3,916.90                -                        -                        3,248.78               -                          -                            
Funded status 88.72                     -                        -                        26.80                    -                          -
Present value of unfunded defined benefit obligation -                         377.51                  50.25                    -                        345.37                    47.88                        
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation 88.72                     377.51                  50.25                    26.80                    345.37                    47.88

Net Defined benefit obligation bifurcated as follows
Current 2.03                       44.08                    5.00                      1.37                      41.18                      5.00                          
Non-Current 86.69                     333.43                  45.25                    25.43                    304.19                    42.88                        

88.72 377.51 50.25 26.80 345.37                    47.88

Gratuity Pension Post retirement 
Benefits

Gratuity Pension Post retirement 
Benefits

-
Current Service Cost 445.55                   25.50                    3.56                      392.36                  25.36                      3.52                          
Net Interest expense (6.13)                      -                        -                        (7.82) -                          -                            
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in profit or 
loss 439.42                    25.50                      3.56                        384.54                    25.36                      3.52                           

Return on the net defined benefit liability (on Plan Assets) 83.72                     -                        -                        (10.50)                   -                          -                            
Actuarial (Gains)/losses arising from changes in financial  
assumptions 257.83                    21.47                      3.33                        22.67                      2.90                        0.46                           

Actuarial (Gains)/losses arising from experience assumptions 220.41                   29.26                    (2.87)                     (35.48)                   20.70                      (2.09)                         
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other 
comprehensive income 561.96                    50.73                      0.46                        (23.31)                     23.60                      (1.63)                          

Year ended 
31-Mar-17

Year ended 
31-Mar-16Components of employer expense

The remeasurement of the net defined liability is included in other comprehensive income

(i) Defined Contribution plan

(ii) Defined benefit plans

In respect of defined contribution plans, an amount of �. 2,943.09 lakhs ( March 31, 2016: � 2,053.97 lakhs) has been recognised as expense in the statement of Profit and Loss during the year

Amount recognised in Balance sheet

Change in fair value of plant assets during the year

Year ended 
31-Mar-17

Year ended 
31-Mar-16

As at 31-Mar-17 As at  31-Mar-16

Year ended 
31-Mar-17

Year ended 
31-Mar-16
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Gratuity Pension
Post retirement 

Benefits Gratuity Pension
Post retirement 

Benefits
-Equity instruments funds 3,916.90                -                        -                        - -                          0
Total 3,916.90 - - - - -

Gratuity Pension Post retirement 
Benefits

Gratuity Pension Post retirement 
Benefits

Discount rate(s) 6.80% 6.80% 6.80% 7.85% 7.85% 7.85%
Expected rate(s) of salary increase 6% - - 6% - -
Retirement Age* 60 yrs 60 yrs 60 yrs 60 yrs 60 yrs 60 yrs
Leaving service 10% - - 10% - -

* Mortality: Published rates under the Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006-08) Ult table.

Sensitivity Analysis

Gratuity Pension Post retirement 
Benefits

Discount rate
Impact of increase in 50 bps on DBO -3.13% -2.79% -3.26%
Impact of decrease in 50 bps on DBO 3.32% 2.95% 3.47%
Life Expectancy
Life Expectancy 1 year increase 0.00% -5.42% -3.72%
Life Expentancy 1 year decrease 0.00% 5.00% 3.46%
Salary Escalation Rate
Impact of increase in 50 bps on DBO 3.32% 0.00% 0.00%
Impact of decrease in 50 bps on DBO -3.17% 0.00% 0.00%

Projected Plan Cash Flow

Maturity Profile Gratuity Pension
Post retirement

Benefits
Expected Benefits for year 1 581.11 44.08 5
Expected Benefits for year 2 453.05 42.81 4.92
Expected Benefits for year 3 389.88 41.44 4.84
Expected Benefits for year 4 409.74 39.98 4.75
Expected Benefits for year 5 499.37 38.42 4.66
Expected Benefits for year 6 554.13 36.78 4.55
Expected Benefits for year 7 337.93 35.05 4.44
Expected Benefits for year 8 337.93 33.26 4.32
Expected Benefits for year 9 387.06 31.41 4.2
Expected Benefits for year 10 and above 2760.75 265.51 46.83
Weighted average duration to the payment of these cash flows 6.45 Years 5.74 Years 6.73 Years

The fair value of the plan assets for India and overseas plan at the end of the reporting period for each category , are as follows

Fair value of plan assets as at
31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

For the year ended
31-Mar-17

The trustees of the plan have outsourced the investment management of the fund to Life Insurance Corporation (LIC). The insurance company in turn manages these funds as per the mandate
provided to them by the trustees and the asset allocation which is within the permissible limits prescribed in the insurance regulations.

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

31-Mar-16
Valuation as at

31-Mar-17

For the year ended
31-Mar-17

The expected cash flow profile of the benefits to be paid to the current membership of the plan, are as follows:

147



33.11. Joint Operation

As at
31-Mar-17

As at
31-Mar-16

As at
01-Apr-15

TPL's Share TPL's Share TPL's Share
TPL - VNR Infrastructure Ltd - Package 1 (JV) (TPL VNR JV - Pkg 1) 80% 80% 80%
TPL - VNR Infrastructure Ltd - Package 2 (JV) (TPL VNR JV - Pkg 2) 85% 85% 85%
GMR Kalindee - TPL JV MMTS Pkg 1 9% 9% 9%
GMR Kalindee - TPL JV MMTS Pkg 2 25% 25% 25%
GMR Kalindee - TPL JV MMTS Pkg 3 17% 17% 17%
GMR Kalindee - TPL JV Jhansi-Bhimsen 14% 14% 14%
TPL Kalindee JV 90% 90% 90%
SIBMOST-TPL JV 49%                        -                              -   
Tata Aldesa JV 50% 50% 50%
GIL (GMR)-TPL JV 50%                        -                              -   
Express Freight Consortium JV 19%                        -                              -   
TPL-SUCG Consortium JV 85%                        -                              -   
TPL-JBTPL JV 75%                        -                              -   
GYT-TPL JV 49% 49% 49%
Gulermark-TPL JV 70%                        -                              -   
CEC-ITD Cem-TPL JV 20%                        -                              -   
CCECC-TPL JV 49%                        -                              -   
TPL-HGIEPL JV 74%                        -                              -   
TPL-Brookfield JV 50%                        -                              -   
TPL Chint 95%                        -                              -   

Tata Projects Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended  March 31 , 2017
All amounts are in   Lakhs unless otherwise stated

Name of the Joint venture
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended  March 31, 2017
All amounts are in   Lakhs unless otherwise stated

33.12 Operating lease arrangements

(i) Payments recognised as an expense
For the year ended

March 31, 2017
For the year ended

March 31, 2016

Minimum Lease payments 400.02                     605.23                       
400.02 605.23                       

(ii) Non-cancellable operating lease commitments

As at 
31-Mar-17

As at 
31-Mar-16

 As at 
1-Apr-15

Not later than 1 year 488.32                 122.34                     571.98                       
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 1,696.42              346.92                     463.11                       
Later than 5 years 891.84                 90.86                       90.86                         

3,076.58 560.12 1,125.95                    

33.13 Unrecognised share of losses of joint ventures

For Year ended
March 31, 2017

For Year ended
March 31, 2016

Unrecognised share of losses of joint ventures for the year
TEIL Projects Limited 7.30                          1.81                           
Al-Tawleed for Energy & Power Company                          (5.93) (9.87)                          

1.37                          (8.06)                          

As at 
31-Mar-17

As at 
31-Mar-16

 As at 
1-Apr-15

Cumulative share of loss of joint ventures
TEIL Projects Limited 37.53                    44.83                       46.64                         
Al-Tawleed for Energy & Power Company 223.52                  217.59                     207.72                       

261.05 262.42 254.36                       

33.14 Dividend paid in foreign currency:

Amount of dividend remitted in foreign currency (�) 244.22 -                            
Total number of non-resident shareholders (to whom the dividends were remitted in foreign currency                1 -                            
Total number of shares held by them on which dividend was due 488,440                   -                            

Year to which the dividend relates Final Dividend of
2015-16.

33.15

SBNs Other denomination 
notes

Total

Closing cash in hand as on 08.11.2016                      47.12 71.14                       118.26                       
(+) Permitted receipts                            -   303.83                     303.83                       
(+) Unpermitted receipts                        0.31 -                            0.31                           
(-) Permitted payments                            -   328.96                     328.96                       
(-) Unpermitted payments                      24.15 -                            24.15                         
(-) Amount deposited in Banks                      23.28 -                            23.28                         
Closing cash in hand as on 30.12.2016                            -   46.01                       46.01                         

Details of Specified Bank Notes (SBN) held and transacted during the period from 8 November, 2016 to 30 December 2016:

Particulars

Tata Projects Limited

For the year 
endedMarch 31, 

2016
Particulars

For the year 
endedMarch 31, 

2017
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